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920
100,000
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@
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- 4S 693 2,663
- 4S 72,730 9,184
- 2,594 -
S.A. de C.V. 1,036 -
- UK 4,215 1,603
- 45,849 43,283
h - 2,691
h 1,218 -
- 6,885 10,224
- 1,081 1,704
(O]
CKHH
- 2,415 -
- CKHH - 1,000
- HPH 3,931 2,847
- HUD
CKHH 981 3,375
- 5,439 5,528
B 1,974 1,061
B 5,392 5,498
B 162,968 161,322
- nGen 17,670 14,864
- - 944
B 3,675 2,841
- 787 1,278
- 959 -
- 4,448 -
- 2,880 -
B 3,338 -
B 3,253 3,903
B 1,238 1,184
©
CKHH
h 33,683 57,865
391,332 334,862
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Ip Sing Chi
2011 14
(2024 12 31 )y [13 10
71

Westports Holdings Berhad
Orient Overseas (International) Limited

COSCo COSCO SHIPPING Development Co., Ltd.
2014 12 the Hong Kong Port Development Council
the Hong Kong Container Terminal Operators Association Limited
2000 2001
40
2022 2024 12 31

Piraeus Port Authority S.A.
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73

University of the Philippines
Columbia University

The Chartered Governance Institute CGI The Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute HKCGI) Chartered Secretary
Chartered Governance Professional

CK CKHH

PT Tbk PT Duta Intidaya Thk

CKHH

CGl 2018 2020
HKCGI 2011 2014

Accounting and Financial Reporting Council

Hong Kong Management Association
2022 2024 12 31
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2011 2016
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Chan Fan-Cheong, Tony
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73

Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers
American Association for Advancement of Science and Society for Industrial & Applied Math

Future Investment Initiative Institute FII

Institute
Skolkovo Institute of Science and Technology
Yidan Prize Foundation
King Fahd University of Petroleum & Minerals /
Korea Advanced Institute of Science & Technology /
National Center of Artificial Intelligence of Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
( )
King Abdullah University of Science and Technology
2022 2024 12 31
* 2024 12
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#

2020 11
(2024 12 31 ) 10
68

University of Hong Kong
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology

New York University
City University of Hong Kong

Chartered Institute of

Logistics and Transport

Hong Kong University Business School
City University of Hong Kong College of Business
The Chinese University of Hong Kong Business School

HK
HK HK
Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce 2006 2011
25
Hong Kong Port and Maritime Board Hong Kong Logistics Development
Council
2022 2024 12 31

# 2024 12
* 2024 12 2024 12
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Im Man leng
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56
2016 2020
2015

Forterra Trust
Forterra Real Estate Pte. Ltd. 2012 2014
2022 2024 12 31
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2000 2004
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Seah Bee Eng Alias Jennifer Loh
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- ISCA
- CAANZ
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* 2024 12
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Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario
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2021
Jimmy Ng
IR
2022 IR
2017
2008 HPH
20
2025 IR

73/317

HPH
1998

2021

Ooooooooooooooooooad

HIT

HPH 2001

2011

HIT

HPH
12 HPH



EDINETOOOO
DOo000000000000000000000000000000000000(E25351)
Do0000000ooo000dodo

Lawrence Shum

HPH 2021
COSCO-HIT ACT
1996
HPH
HPH North and East China
28
Chinese People ”s Political Consultative Conference
2022 10 Shenzhen Ports Association
Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
2020
2022 31
Ma Xiaoli
COSCO-HIT ACT
COSCO-HIT ACT HPH
2021 HPH
2005 HPH
13
Raymond Lam
HIT
HIT HPH
2015 HPH COSCO-HIT
29
Raymond Chan
HPH 2021
HPH
1992 HPH
HPH
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HPH 10
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http://www. info.gov.hk/hkma/eng/statistics/index_efdhk.htm
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14 NISA
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19,284,364 100.2
20,097 0.1
12,623 0.1
19,251,644 100.0
20,097 0.0
6,316,607 15.0
48,337,539 115.0
42,000,835 100.0
HPH HPH HPHT
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SZ-HK
SZ-HK
BEIBU GULF PORT GROUP
- - /
Guangxi Beibu Gulf International Port Group Company Limited
CLP Power Hong Kong Limited CLP HIT
2023 9,000 Co,
HIT CLP
1,500 TEU
17 24,000TEU 360
28
17
SZ-HK
EC
EC EC 10
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51 2,000 18
EC
SZ-HK
600
HPH 2024
HPH
HPH 22.3 TEU 2023
2023 12 14 12

2024

2024

2023 HPH
HPH
TEU 2023
11,567.3 2023 10,635.5
2023 3,624.8 2024 3,600.7
260.6 2023 258.4
2024 2,824.4 2023 2,894.8
2024 60.5 2023 67.4 10
564.0 2023 604.8 2023
4,378.1 2023 3,320.1 1,058.0 32
2,173.2 2023 1,481.5 691.7 47
650.0 2023 233.5 416.5 178
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2025
2025 8,711,101,022
HPH
99 14 0.05 342 0.00
100 1,000 2,797 9.38 2,656,488 0.03
1,001 10,000 15,342 51.46 76,677,086 0.88
10,001 1,000,000 11,507 38.59 789,255,881 9.06
1,000,001 155 0.52 7,842,511,225 90.03
29,815 100.00 8,711,101,022 100.00
2025
CK 2,619,246,222 30.07
2,406,227,022 27.62
CK
2,406,227,022 27.62
PSA
1,236,178,600 14.19
3 1,306,658,815 14.99
CK CK Hutchison Holdings Limited (CKHH ) CKHH CK
CK Hutchison Global Investments Limited CKHGI
HPGH HPH CKHH
CKHH CKH CKH
2.45
HPGH CKHGI HPGH HPH
PSA PSA
PSA
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20
2025
2,406,227,022 | 27.62
1,890,458,932 | 21.70
PSA 1,236,178,600 | 14.19
DBS 630,719,251 7.24
292,201,598 3.35
DBSN 271,916,341 3.12
HSBC 243,516,847 2.80
BNP 118,877,475 1.36
0CBC 68,339,451 0.78
10 | uoB 66,846,535 0.77
11 44,658,442 0.51
12 | BPSS 44,406,403 0.51
13 | DB 42,675,203 0.49
1 37,778,615 0.43
15 37,098,800 0.43
16 DBS 23,526,850 0.27
17 | CGS 16,331,343 0.19
18 15,185,000 0.17
19 | OCBC 14,223,600 0.16
20 12,524,200 0.14
7,513,690,508 | 86.23
2025 54.92
HPH 723
2024 1,579,846 0.169 0.230 0.118 0.157
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)
2024 12 31
( (
)
)
HPHT 10,000,000 10 1,928 | 19,284.4 | 100
100
100
)
12 14
HPH
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12
26,807.0 491,640 26,110.1 478,859 3.08 56 3.00 55
2022 12 )
13
25,629.2 470,040 24,958.4 457,737 2.94 54 2.87 53
2023 12 )
14
25,034.6 459,135 24,407 .4 447,632 2.87 53 2.80 51
2024 12 )
HPH
12
21,631.6 396,724 20,934.7 383,942 2.48 45 2.40 44
2022 12 )
13
20,403.4 374,198 19,732.6 361,896 2.34 43 2.27 42
2023 12 )
14
19,251.6 353,074 18,624.4 341,571 2.21 41 2.14 39
2024 12 )
2011 18 HPH
2024 0.128 18.42 0.175 19.56
2024 0.122 17.55 0.165 18.44
2024 0.129 18.56 0.167 18.66
2024 0.151 21.72 0.193 21.57
2024 10 0.157 22.59 0.205 22.91
2024 11 0.158 22.73 0.215 24.03
2024 12 0.164 23.59 0.225 25.14
2025 0.159 22.88 0.215 24.03
2025 0.165 23.74 0.220 24.59
2025 0.168 24.17 0.225 25.14
2025 0.149 21.44 0.196 21.90
2025 0.159 22.88 0.205 22.91
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( ) (
12
1,263.1 14.50
2022 2022 12 31
13
1,149.8 13.20
2023 2023 12 31
14
1,062.7 12.20
2024 2024 12 31
()
12
3.6
2022 2022 12 31
13
0.0
2023 2023 12 31
14
2.1
2024 2024 12 31
( ) (A B)+ Bx 100
A
B
)
12
2022 2022 12 31
13
2023 2023 12 31
14
2024 2024 12 31
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HPH

HPH
HPH

HPH HPH HPH
14

ChP CDP
coP

CDP
CDP CDP

HPH 12 31 HPH
2011 25 2011 12 31
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HPH
HPH
HPH

HPH

21
75

9.2

905 906

120/317



EDINETOOOO
OOo0ooDOoO0ooo0ooo00oo00b0oo0oo00DbO00DoO0O0no(e25351)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HPH 2011 25 HPH

CKHH

6.1.1 36 806 2025
23
HPH

50.0

20.0

HPH
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HPH

HPH HPH

HPH

HPH

HPH

CbP

HPH

HPH

HPH

CbP
CDP

10 CDP
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CDP

CDP

HPH CDP

CbP
CDP
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12

CDP HPH

HPH
9.2
HPH

HPH
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HPH HPH

36

HPH HPH

HPH HPH

48

HPH

HPH
SGXNET

HPH
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HPH HPH

HPH
HPH

HPH

HPH

HPH
HPH

10.00

HPH

HPH
HPH
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HPH

HPH
21( ) HPH

HPH

21(C )

HPH

HPH
HPH
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HPH

38 59 328

23

103
193

2025 30
18.34
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2024 12 31
2024 2023
4(a) 11,567,269 212,144 10,635,522 195,055
(3,600,694) (66,037)  (3,624,818) (66,479)
(260,584) 4,779)  (258,355) (4,738)
(2,824,363) (51,799)  (2,894,820) (53,091)
60,482 1,109 67,418 1,236
(564,000) (10,344)  (604,824) (11,092)
(7,189,159)  (131,849) (7,315,399)  (134,164)
5 4,378,110 80,205 3,320,123 60,891
6 (854,925) (15,679)  (872,022) (15,993)
(87,380) (1,603) (84,727) (1,554)
(43,360) (795) (35,298) (647)
3,392,445 62,217 2,328,076 42,697
7 (1,219,235) (22,361)  (846,591) (15,526)
2,173,210 39,857 1,481,485 27,170
(1,523,235) (27,936)  (1,248,025) (22,889)
HPH
649,975 11,921 233,460 4,282
HPH . 7.46 1.37 2.68 0.49
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2024 12 31
2024 2023
2,173,210 39,857 1,481,485 27,170
158,669 2,910 23,365 429
(21,973) (403) (36,914) (677)
(37,614) (690) (42,681) (783)
(166,312) (3,050)  (120,719) (2,214)
2,495 46
(4,843) (89) (4,588) 84)
(41,368) (759) (42,086) 772)
(73,272) (1,344) (66,234) (1,215)
(186,713) (3,424)  (287,362) (5,270)
1,986,497 36,432 1,194,123 21,900
(1,474,773) (27,047)  (1,195,990) (21,934)
HPH 511,724 9,385 (1,867) (34)
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2024 12 31

2024 2023

10 18,919,630 346,986 19,622,016 359,868

11 501,612 9,200 664,194 12,181
12 30,462,936 558,690 31,858,286 584,281
13 7,944 146 8,658 159
14(a) 3,830,742 70,256 4,164,948 76,385
14(b) 11,270,044 206,693 11,270,044 206,693
15 768,699 14,098 778,848 14,284
16 3,687,651 67,632 3,808,234 69,843
17 250,923 4,602 272,896 5,005
193,963 3,557

23 276,475 5,071 131,938 2,420
18 37,073 680 14,630 268

70,013,729 1,284,052 72,788,655 1,334,944

19 8,138,133 149,253 8,194,864 150,294

20 3,364,311 61,701 3,021,181 55,408
27,651 507
70,830 1,299 75,956 1,393
11,600,925 212,761 11,292,001 207,095
24 135,136 2,478

11,736,061 215,239 11,292,001 207,095

21 6,055,962 111,066 6,275,962 115,101

22 4,842,386 88,809 4,774,820 87,570
384,014 7,043 286,613 5,256
11,282,362 206,919 11,337,395 207,928
453,699 8,321 (45,394) (833)

70,467,428 1,292,373 72,743,261 1,334,111

22 20,287,023 372,064 20,870,364 382,762
18 8,083,600 148,253 8,410,618 154,251
25 95,970 1,760 107,237 1,967
28,466,593 522,077 29,388,219 538,980
42,000,835 770,295 43,355,042 795,131

26 68,553,839 1,257,277 68,553,839 1,257,277

(43,519,219)  (798,142) (42,924,633)  (787,238)

HPH 25,034,620 459,135 25,629,206 470,040
16,966,215 311,160 17,725,836 325,002

42,000,835 770,295 43,355,042 795,131
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27

19
20

21

26

2024 2023
19,284,364 353,675 20,430,673 374,699
3,679 67 2,919 54

2,632 48 1,427 26

6,311 116 4,346 80
39,031 716 31,646 580
(32,720) (600) (27,300) (501)
19,251,644 353,075 20,403,373 374,198
68,553,839 1,257,277 68,553,839 1,257,277
(49,302,195)  (904,202) (48,150,466)  (883,080)
19,251,644 353,075 20,403,373 374,198
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2024 2023
28(a) 6,736,064 123,539 6,049,892 110,955
(874,804) (16,044)  (840,678) (15,418)
(1,468,284) (26,928)  (1,349,798) (24,755)
4,392,976 80,567 3,859,416 70,782
(1,057,700) (19,398)  (1,470,950) (26,977)
(370,872) (6,802)  (489,874) (8,984)
4,396 81 (4,116) (@75)

1,096 20
12,787 235 21,902 402
4,458 82 77,810 1,427
341,112 6,256 365,438 6,702
481,500 8,831 1,011,200 18,545
(583,223) (10,696)  (488,590) (8,961)
4,341,550 79,624 4,415,500 80,980
(4,869, 250) (89,302) (5,875,000)  (107,748)
(17,327) (318) (11,294) (207)
(1,106,310) (20,290)  (1,175,999) (21,568)
(2,215,147) (40,626)  (2,924,337) (53,632)
(3,866,484) (70,911)  (5,571,130)  (102,175)
(56,731) (1,040)  (2,200,304) (40,354)
8,194,864 150,294 10,395,168 190,647
19 8,138,133 149,253 8,194,864 150,294
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68,553,839 (360,307)  (346,113) 193,963 481,986 (42,894,162) 25,629,206 17,725,836 43,355,042
649,975 649,975 1,523,235 2,173,210

158,669 158,669 158,669
(21,973) (21,973) (21,973)

(166,312) (166,312) (166,312)|

(2,521) (2,521) (2,322) (4,843)

(32,877) 35 (32,842) (8,526) (41,368)

(73,272) (73,272) (37,614)  (110,886)
(108,670) (21,938)  (166,312) 158,669 (138,251) (48,462)  (186,713)

(108,670) (21,938)  (166,312) 158,669 649,975 511,724 1,474,773 1,986,497

(1,106,310)  (1,106,310) (1,106,310)

(2,234,394)  (2,234,394)

68,553,839 (468,977)  (368,051) 27,651 640,655 (43,350,497) 25,034,620 16,966,215 42,000,835
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68,553,839  (256,905)  (309,407) 314,682 (2,495) 458,621 (41,951,263) 26,807,072 19,469,674 46,276,746
233,460 233,460 1,248,025 1,481,485
23,365 23,365 23,365
(36,914) (36,914) (36,914)|
(120,719) (120,719) (120,719)
2,495 2,495 2,495
(3,713) (3,713) (875) (4,588)|
(33,815) 208 (33,607) (8,479)  (42,086)
(66,234) (66,234)  (42,681)  (108,915)
(103,762)  (36,706)  (120,719) 2,495 23,365 (235,327)  (52,035)  (287,362)
(103,762)  (36,706)  (120,719) 2,495 23,365 233,460 (1,867) 1,195,990 1,194,123
360 (360)
(1,175,999) (1,175,999) (1,175,999)
(2,939,828) (2,939,828)
68,553,839  (360,307)  (346,113) 193,963 481,986 (42,894,162) 25,629,206 17,725,836 43,355,042
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1,257,277 (6,608) (6,348) 3,557 8,840 (786,679) 470,040 325,092 795,131
11,921 11,921 27,936 39,857
2,910 2,910 2,910
(403) (403) (403)
(3,050) (3,050) (3,050)|
(46) (46) (43) (89)
(603) 1 (602) (156) (759)
(1,344) (1,344) (690) (2,034),
(1,993) (402) (3,050) 2,910 (2,536) (889) (3,424)
(1,993) (402) (3,050) 2,910 11,921 9,385 27,047 36,432
(20,290) (20,290) (20,290)
(40,979) (40,979)
1,257,277 (8,601) (6,750) 507 11,750 (795,048) 459,135 311,160 770,295
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1,257,277 4,712) (5,675) 5,771 (46) 8,411  (769,386) 491,642 357,074 848,716
4,282 4,282 22,889 27,170
429 429 429
(677) (677) (677)
(2,214) (2,214) (2,214)
46 46 46
(68) (68) 16) (84)
(620) 4 (616) (156) (772)
(1,215) (1,215) (783) (1,998)
(1,903) (673) (2,214) 46 429 (4,316) (954) (5,270)
(1,903) (673) (2,214) 46 429 4,282 (34) 21,934 21,900
7 (@]
(21,568)  (21,568) (21,568)
(53,916)  (53,916)
1,257,277 (6,608) (6,348) 3,557 8,840  (786,679) 470,040 325,092 795,131
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2024 12 31
2024 68,553,839 (48,150,466) 20,403,373
(45,419) (45,419)
(1,106,310) (1,106,310)
2024 12 31 68,553,839 (49,302,195) 19,251,644
2023 68,553,839 (46,922,257) 21,631,582
(52,210) (52,210)
(1,175,999) (1,175,999)
2023 12 31 68,553,839 (48,150,466) 20,403,373
2024 1,257,277 (883,080) 374,198
(833) (833)
(20,290) (20,290)
2024 12 31 1,257,277 (904,202) 353,075
2023 1,257,277 (860,554) 396,723
(958) (958)
(21,568) (21,568)
2023 12 31 1,257,277 (883,080) 374,198
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HPH
2011 25
HPH 2004
2001
HPH
098632
#14 07 HPH 2011 18
SGX-ST
HPH
HPH HPH
HPH
HKICPA HKFRS
HKFRS IFRS
HKFRS IFRS

HKFRS
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2024 HKICPA
HKAS
HKAS
HKFRS 16
HKAS HKFRS
1
HKAS 21 HKFRS @
2
HKFRS HKFRS @
HKFRS HKFRS HKFRS HKFRS 11
2

HKFRS 10 HKAS @
nkrrs 18 &
wers 19

(©)

HKFRS 10 HKAS 28 ®

1
@ 025

2
@ 502
@ 027
(O]
2024 12 31

© @
2024 12 31
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4
@
2024 2023
10,917,859 10,053,421
257,543 180,623
38,799 36,649
7,142 6,996
1,747 1,610
11,223,090 10,279,299
344,179 356,223
11,567,269 10,635,522
®)

HPH

HPH
HPH

154/317



EDINETOOOO
OOo0ooDOoO0ooo0ooo00oo00b0oo0oo00DbO00DoO0O0no(e25351)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024 2023 2024 2023
2,476,584 2,515,075 17,841,394 18,714,522
9,090,685 8,120,447 51,607,864 53,460,706

11,567,269 10,635,522 69,449,258 72,175,228

2024 2023

17 9,357 18,567
4,124

237

17,353 15,962

1,053 1,287

1,289,476 1,290,061

486 497

334,206 334,206

1,188,933 1,258,237

11,262 11,819

5,059

53,701 58,334

1,281,975 1,321,714

108,398 102,895

7,124 48,765

2023 12 31
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2024 2023
565,493 581,564
231,183 248,625
22 19,226

1,514 1,547
723 847
36,786 39,439
854,925 872,022

2024 2023
1,568,841 1,316,687
18 (349, 606) (470,096)
1,219,235 846,591

2024 2023
3,523,185 2,448,101
27.9 2023  29.3 982,872 718,214
(50,176)
(21,846) (22,830)
89,847 109,427
141,167 125,857
(133) ©)
(6,279) (37,056)
33,732 3,836
(125) (674)
1,219,235 846,591

OECD
HPH
2025
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Global Anti-Base

Erosion 15
2024 2023
2022 2022 12 31
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HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS TRLST

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 51 December 2024

2024 2023

HNote HES'000 HKS'000

Revenusa and ather incoma aa) 11,567 269 10,635,522
Cost of sendoes rendared [3.600.654) (3624818)
S1aff costs [#60,584) [258,35%)
Depreciation and amartisation [LEB24.363) [2.694.820)
Other operatimg income 60,482 67,418
Crher operating expenses (564,000) [604,824)
Total operating expensas [F1B9.159) [7.315,3599)
Choerating prodic 5 4.378.110 3,320,723
Interest and other finance costs L] [854,925) [BT022)
Share of net ‘nsses after 1ax ol associted companips (87,380 (B4,727)
Share of net 'osses afier 1ax of joint ventures (43,3600 {35,208)
Profit before tas 3392415 1328076
lax 7 [1.219,235) [B46,501)
Profit Tor the year 273210 1,487 485
Mloeatad as: Profit attributable to non-controling Interests [1.53,235) [1,248,025)
Profit attrioutable to umstholders of HPH Trust B4DATS £33.460

HK cents HE cents

Earnings per unit atinoutabée to unitholders of HPH Trust a9 .46 £ 68
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ANMUAL REPORT 2024

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 Decomber 2024

2024 2023
HES'D00 HKES"000
Profit for the year 2173210 1.481,485
rher comprehenthee incomeioss);
Iterrs that wil not be reclassified 1o profit or loss;
Remeasurermnent af defined benslit plans 158669 23,365
|2 STIMENLS:
Valuation losses taken (o resenes 21873 {36,914)
Currency translation diffarences 137614y {42,681)
iLems nat may be reclassified subsegquently 1o profi or loss:
Cash flow hedges arising from Cross currency irterest rale swap contracts and Inserest
rate swap contracts
Fair value losses recagnized drectly in reserves {166312) {120.719)
Costs of hedging
Changes in faer value of currency basis spread - 2,495
Share of other comprehensive loss of associated companies {4.843) {4.5BB)
Share of other comprehensive loss of joint ventures [47.368) (42.086)
Currency translation differences 73272y {66 234)
Total other cormprebensme [o5s for the yoar {186.713) {287.362)
Total comprehensive Income for the year 1, REE 407 1,194,123
Allocared as: Muritulable 1o son-contralling interesis (1,474,773} 11.195.950)
Attriputatle 1o wnithoiders of HPH Trust 511,724 [1.867)
Note:
ILems shiown withit other cormarahens i iRCormeioss) have na tax alecl
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HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS TRUST

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A1 5 Decomber 2024

2024 2023
Note HKS 000 HES000
ASSETS

MNon-current assets
Fled assets 10 18,919,620 19622016
Projecs under deseapment 1" 501,672 G, 159
Leasshold land and land wse rights 12 30462936 31,858286
Railway usage rights 13 Ta4s B.658
Customet relattanships 14{a) 3,830,742 4,164,948
Coodwill 14k} 11,270,044 11,270,0u8
Azssociated companies 15 TE8 630 778,848
Jing veniures 16 3687651 3808234
Cirhdr BIOA-CureEnt G5s8s 7 250923 272896
InTerest race swaps undar cash flow hedges 193,963
Pension assets 3 276475 131,938
Dufarrad tax assels 18 37073 14,530

013,779 72,788,655

Current assets

Cash and bank balances 19 8138133 B,194, 864
Trade and other recevabies 20 3364370 1021181
Imt&rast rale SWaps under cash flirw hidges 27851 =
Imventories 70,830 75956
11,600,925 17,292,001
Assets classified a5 hedd for sale 24 135,136 -
11,736,061 17,292,001
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables Fal bBOS5S967 6,275,962
Bank and ather debts 2 4,841 386 4,774,820
Current tax Rabilities 334014 285613
11,282 362 11,337,395
Met current assetsi[labliities) 453,650 {45,354
Total assets less current liabilities TOAET AZ8 72743261
Mor-current liabillties
Bank and ather debts 2 20287023 20870364
Defarred tax labilites 18 8,083,600 BA10618
Other mon-cwrrent Bakilities 5 Flﬁ::?'.fil 107237
2846553 20,388.219
MNet assets 42,000,835 43,355,042
EQUITY
Linits in issue 6 68,553 839 68,553,539
Reseryves (3519219}  (42,824,633)
Met assets attributable to unitholders of HPH Trust 25034620 25,629,206
Maor-controlling mierests 16986215 17,735,836
Total equity 42,000,835 43,355,042
148

194/317



EDINETOOOO
OO000o0oO0oOdoooooooo0o000odboonoonoo0onoonoan(e2s351)
OooOooooOoooooooooboood

ANMUAL REPORT 2024

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS TRUST

At 51 Decemibe: 2024

2024 2023
Note HKS'000 HES'D00
ASSETS
Non-current asset
mvestment In a subsidiary comparny 2 19,284,364 20,430,673
Current assets
Cash amdd Dank Balances 5 3679 g9
Trade and pcher receivables 20 2632 A7
6311 4,345
Current Hability
Trace and other payanles N 19,031 31,646
Met current llabilities [32.7200 [27.300)
Total assets less current liabilities 19,251,644 20,403,373
EQUITY
Units in issum 26 68.553,839 58,553,839
Reserves [#2.302,195) (48,1 50,466)
Total equity 19,251 644 20403 573
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HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS TRLST

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the yoar ended 51 Degember 2024

2024 2023
Note HES000 HESDO0
Operating activities
Cash generated from operations Z8(a) 6,736,006 6,045,892
Imterest and othar finance costs paid (B4 BDLY (R4 6TE)
Tax paid {1468 2843 {1,349, 79E)
Net cash from operating activities 4352976 3853416
Investing activities
Laan ta an associated company {1.057.700) 1,470,950)
Purchase of feed assets and orojects under devielopmen (3T0ETZ) (A4E3.874)
Proceadsipayment) on disposal of fixed assels 4326 4116)
Proceacs on dispasal of intarast in a jaint venture 1056 -
Diidends raceived from inwestments 12787 21,902
Bradends received from an assoclated company and joint ventures 4458 Tran
Imterest recesed 341012 365,438
Repayrment of loans by an associated comparmy asd 3 joint vanlure A81.500 1,011,200
Met cash used In investing activitles (383.233) {483, 550)
Fimancing activities
Mew borrowings 4,341.550 4415500
Repayrment of borrowngs (4,869.250) 15,875,000
Principal elements of lzase payments (732N (11.294)
Distribitions to unitholders af HPH Trest {1,106.210) {1.175,955)
Dividends o mon-cositroBing intereses {2,215.147) (2224,337)
Net cash used in financing activities {3, 866.484) [ECTARE ]
Net changes in cash and cash egubvalents 156 731) (2,200,304)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 3,194 862 10,395,168
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 19 8138133 A, 154,804
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anHUAL REPORT 2024

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 Decomber 2024
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HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS TRLUST

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the yoar ended 51 December 2024

Costs Attributable Noa-
ofhedgng  Pension Accumlated to contreling
e rElEnE fnses  unitholders  inberesta
HESD PN HESI00 HESO00  HKSDOD

Gmup
e gy M3 BEEIE [N ORAR W [4m  SREN SR NEIR EREd SUTRIN
Sl bor e e el JRA  ENR L
{Oerer comprehershe oometios)
Rerneasnemrt of dafrad Senett
s - - - . . FIL ] . FLE -1 . i
I

e Lo boms e o resen - . GG
Cirh flow Beciges b from
L E AT et 3]
onras a0 e 3 wap
(onrEis
P ot e Pttt
Srath i IS ity ] 15719
Loem ol redgne
(Charsges i fal vtom o drreney
cs il - - - : 188 - . 1A% 148
Share of e pomprehensee
es o assnnasd corpaniss - ang - - - - - ans frirs (L
Shice of e pompr Bhan g ksl
of jort ertues - ey ko . . - - Ectir] BOE 20e
Cumery trarskaron difierenges - [ ] - - - (2015
Toradl wther comprehares o= - [ MR (N 4% ik - gialm [EI%D
Toud DT o LR SN 1Ny P FLE T PLLE ] N&n  LIEsa LS
Trzrshemed Inffrom) msene - i - - - - i - -
Trarsadiont with owoers:
b tion . | LRSS NS AR

Dhadends ] i = . [(La3ArE  [Hasnd
& 31 Qeceraber 2013 GESERAR RO DRI 1938 - dEIS66  WIRGAIED  XSENXNE 17TDGRIE SLEEM

NS . Eh

152

198/317



EDINETOOOO
OO000o0oO0oOdoooooooo0o000odboonoonoo0onoonoan(e2s351)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY OF
HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS TRUST

Far thse year ended 31 Decomiser 20024

Attributable
Units Accumulated to
in issue losses  wnitholders
HES 000 HES 000 HKS000
Trust
At 1 Januany X024 B&,553 839 (48,150 4566) 20403373
Lass and todal comprahansive loss lor the year - M5419) {45.419)
Transactions with owners
Dhestribaut ions {1,906, 3109 11,106,310}
AL 31 December 2024 (3,553 839 (49,302, 195) 19,251.644
AT January 2023 63553839 (46,922, 257) 21,631,582
Loss and togal comgarehenshe loss Tor thie A 54210 2a210)
Trarsactions with owners
Destriputions - 11,1 75.530) {1,175, 945459)
Al AT December A0 b 554 R0 [CERETVEE ] S0.a03.472
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HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 General information

Hutchison Port Holdings Trust (Truss o "HPH Trust?) 1S a business trust constituted by a desd of trust dated 25
February 2017 (as amended) (the “Trust Deed’) and regisiered with the Monetary Authotly of Singapore, HPH
Trust is principally regulated by the Business Trusts Act 2004 of Singapore and Securities and Futures Act 2001 of
Singacore. Under the Trust Deed, Hutchison Port Holdings Management Me. Limited {the *Trustee-Manager), has
declared that [t will hold all its assets (ncluding businesses) scquired on wust (or the unitholders as the Trusoee-
Manager of HPH Trust. The regstered address of 1he Trustee-Manager 15 at 1 Harbourfrant Avenue, #1407,
Keppel Bay Tower, Sngapore 058632, HPH Trust was listed on the Main Board of Singapore Fxchange Securities
Trading Limited (the SGX-5T7 on 18 March 2011,

HPH Trust is established with the princpal investmont mandate of isvesting in, developing, aperating and
managing deep-water container pens in the Guangdong Province of China, Hong Kong and Macau, HPH Trust
may also invest in other types of port assets Including river pants, which are complementary (o the deep-water
contaner parts gwned by HPH Trust, as well a5 undertake certain port ancillary services including, bul not Emited
ta, trucking. feedering, freght- forwarding. supply chain management, warehousing and distribution serdces,

2 Basis of preparation and material accounting policy information

Thie consolidated financial statemants of HPH Trust and its subsidlaries (rogether the “Group’), have been
prepared in accordance with Horng Kong Fnancial Reporting Standards ("HKFRST ssued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPAT). The financial stitements have been prepared under the
histarical cost corvention except for defined benefit plan pension assets, Investments and derivative financial
instruments which dre stated at fair value, and assets classified as held for sale are generaty measured at the
Iower of Cafrying afmount and Fair walue less cost 10 Sell, as explained in thie materil accountng palicies set oul in
Mote 2

There is no material difference in preparing the financla’ statements using HKFRS and International RAnancial
Reporting Standards (TFRST. Mo material adjustments are required 1o restate the financlal statements prepared
under HEFAS 10 compey with IFRS,

The preparation of financis! statements In conformily with HKFRS requires management to exercise |is
judgements in the process af applying the accounting padcies af the Group. It also requires the wse of cortain
critical Accounting estemanes and assumplions. The areas imosing a higher degres of judgements ar compliecity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant o the financial statements, are disclosed in Note 3

Thie Group has adopted all of the amendiments and interpratations ssued by the HECPA that are mandatory for
annual period beginning 1 [anuary 2024, The effect of tve adoption of these amendments and eterpretalions wWas
not matenal 1o the Group’s results or financial postion

Amerndments (o HEKAS 1 Classification of Liabities as Current or Non-current
Amendments to HEAS 1 Hon-current Liabifies with Covenants
Arnendments o HKFRS 16 Lease Liahility in a Sale and Leaseback

Homg Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised) Presantation of Financal Statements - Classificatson by the Borrower of
a Term Loan that Comtains a Repayment on Demand Clause

Amendments (o HEAS 7 and HKFRS 7 Supphar Finance Arrangemants
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ANNUAL REPORT 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basis of preparation and material accounting policy infermation (Continued)

At the date of autharisation of the financial statements, the following new standards. amendments and
interpretations were in issue but nat vet effectve and have not been early adopted by the Group:

Amendments to HEAS 21 and HEFAS 1" Lack of Exchangeabilty

Arnendmanls 1o HKFRS 3 and HEFRS 79 amendments 1o the Classification and Measurement of Fnancial
Inslruments

HEFRS 1, HEFRS 7, HEFRS &, HEFRS 10 Annua! improvements to HKFRSs - valume 11
and HKAS 75

HEFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosurs In Fnancial Statements
HKFRS 199 Subsidiaries without Pubic Azcountability. Disclosures
Amendments to Hong song Amendments ta Hong Kong Enterpratation 5 Presentation of Financial
Interpretation 3 Statements - Classification oy the Borrower ol a Term Loan that
Containg a Repayrment on Demand Clause
Amendiments to HEFRS 10 and Zale or Contributon of Assets Between an Investor and its Associate or
HHAS 281 Joint Venture

(N Efentve for anmsl penods Degnring 1 fanadey 2075
31 Efective for annual periods begnning 1 jangary 2026
@) Effertive for anms periods beginring | Janusey 7007
W MeweHectve cate to te detenmined

The Group s assessing the full impact of these few standards, amendments and interpretations, certain of them
will ghee rize 10 change in presentation disclosure and measurements al cetain items in the financdal statements.
It 5 oo expechid (o have material impact on ihe Group

Basis of consolidation

The consehdated Nndsclal staements of the Groug far the year ended 31 December 2024 incede 4l its direct
mnd indirect subsidiany companies and alse Incorpoate the intErést in associsted companies, jent operations
and joint venures on the basls setout in Notes H(c) and 2{d) Delow. Results of subsidkary companies, associated
companies and joint ventures acquired or disposed of during the year are included as from thelr effective dates of
acousition o 31 December 2024 or up to the diates of disposal as the case may be, The acquisition of subsidary
companies 5 accountad for using the acquisition msthod,

Subsidiary companies

A subsidiary company is an antity over which the Group has contral The Group controls an entity when the Group
i5 exposed 19, or has rights (o, variatde returns from its imvolvarment with the entity and has the ability 1o affea
these returns through s power over the entity. Subsidiary companies are fully consalidated from the date on
which cantrol Is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that controd ceases. in the
unconsolidated financlal statements of the halding company, investments in subsidiary compardes are carried at
Cost legs provision (of smpairmant in value,

The acquisieon method of accounting 5 used o account for business comoinations by the Group. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of subsiclary companies are the far values of the assets transferred,
the Sabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred also includes
thie fair value of any &xser or llability resulting from a contingent consideration arangement Acquistion-related
C0515 are expensed as InCurred. ldenuflable assets acquired and liabdities and contingent Habilities assumed (n
@ business combenation are messured inltially at thewr fair values at the acquisition date. On the acquisition by
aCqusition basis, the Group recognises a non-controling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or al non-
camtrallng Interests propofticnate share of the acquiress nit assets.
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HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Basis of preparation and material accounting policy infermation (Continued)
{b)  Subsidiary companies (Continued)

The macess of the consideration transferred, the amaure of any non-contralling mteress in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquirse over the fair value of the identifiable
et assets acquired is recorded a5 goodwill, I this & less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
scouared in the cise of a bargain purchase, the difference 5 recognised directly in the income statement,

{c}  Associated companles

An ascociated campasy s an entiny, other than a subsidiary company ar 3 jaint venture, in which the Group has
a long-term equy Interest [including long-term interests whicn form part of the net investment) and over which
the Group is In a positon to exercise significant influence aver its management, which IncCludes participation in the
financial and operating posty decisions.

The results and assets and liatilides of assockaled companies are incorporated in (Nese financia’ Falements Using
the equity method of accouming, except when tne vesiment s classified as held for sale, In which case it is
sccounted for under HEFRS 5 "MNon-cufrent assets held for =a'e and discontinued operations”. The tofal carnying
amount of such mvestments [s reduced o recognise ary identified impairment kass in the value of indvidual
iFvRstments

{d} Joint arrangements

A [oint arrangement & an arrangement of which two or more parties have joint contro and aver which none of
the participating parties has unilaeral comrol.

Investments in joint arangements are classified either as joint operations or joint ventures, depending on the
contractual rights and obdgations each investor has. Jomt operations arise whare the investors have rights to the
assers and obligatons for the liabilities of an arrangement. A joint operator accounts for [ts share of the assets,
liabimes, revenue and expenses, Jont ventures arse where the investors have rights 1o the net assets of the
HTINGEMENL.

The resuds and net assets of joint wentwres are incorporated in these firandal st#ements usng the equity
method of accounting. excepl when the mwestment i< clagsified as hold far sals, in which case it is accounted for
under HEFRS S "MNen-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations”. Tne wotal carrying amount of such
Imsestmends is reduced to recagnise any dentified impairment loss i the value of individua! Investments,

{e]  Fixed assets

Fopd assets are stated at cost bess depreciation and any imparment loss, Properties comgiise binldings and chl
works, Buildings and civil works are depreciated on the bass of an expacted ife of 50 years, of the remaénder
thereaf, or ower the remaining period of the lease of the underlying leasehold land and land ws=e rignts, whichever
15 lesser. The period of the lease includes the period for whech a right of renews| & sttached. Other assets
cofmprise motar wehicles, competer equigment and other ficed assets

Depreciation of fixed assets other than properties s provided at rates calowated to write off thelr costs to their
residual values over thelr estimated useful Ives on a straight line basis as folows:

Container handiing equipmen 10 - 30 years
Barges 15 years
Nealor vahicles 5 yaars
Computer equipment 5 years
Cither fixed assets 9- 2% years

The giEn or loss on dispassl or retivemnent of o Need asset i the dilference between the net sales procesds and
the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and i recognised in the income statement
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ANNLUAL REPORT 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basis of preparation and material accounting policy infermation (Continued)
Projects under development

Projects under development are carried at cost and include project development expenditure and capltalised
interest on related loans indurred up to the date of completion. On completion, projects under development are
translerred to fed assets.

Leasehald land and land use rights

The acquisition costs and uplront payments made for easehold land and land use rightls are presested on the
staterment of financial pasitian as ieasehold nd and land Use rights, The prepaid lease aayments are aght-of use
assets. The balances are expensed In the income statement on a stralghi-line basis over the perod of the leaser
rights.

Customer relationships

Customner relationships, which are acquired in a business combination, are recognised at Far value at the
acguisition date. Customer relationships are carrled at cost less accumulated amaortisation, Amartisation
Is calculated using the straight-line method over the expected ife of the customer relationships, ranging from
approxmataly 23 to 33 years

Goodwill

Goodwill |5 nitially meadsured at cost being ewcess of the aggregate of the consideration tramsferred, the amount
recagnised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's prvicusly hild equity intérests in the
acoures over the fair value 'of the net identifiable assets acquired and Habilities assumed, Gondwill on acguisition
of a forelgn operation is reated as an asset of the foreign operation,

Goodwill is subgict to impairment test anrually and wheh there are indications that the carrying value may not be
mecoverabie. If the cost of acquistion is less than the fair value of the Group's share of the ner identfiable assets
of Ine acquired comparny, the difference is recognesed directly In the Income statement.

For the purpose of impairment testing of goodwill, goodwill 15 allocated to each of the Groups cash-generating
units (FCGLR) expactad o benefit from synesgies arsing from the busiress combination

An imparrment loss & recognised when the carrying amourt of a CGU, incluteng the goodwill, exceeds the
recoverabla amoant of the CGU. The recoverable amount of 3 CGU is the higher of the CGU's falr value less cost
b sl and value-inuse

The toaal impairment loss of 3 CGU |s afiocated first 1o reduce the carrying amount of goodwill slocated 1o the

CGU and then o the other assets of tne CGL pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the
CGu

Any mpairment less on gondwill & recognised as an expense and is ot revessed in 8 subseguient perniod
The profit or loss on disposal Is calculated by reference o the net assets at the date of disposal including the

attributable amount of goodwill but does ot incude any aitributable goodwill previously eliminated against
[ESRFViRE,

Railway usage rights

Ralwiay usage rights are carded at cost less accumulated amaortisation. Amaortisation s calculated using the
siraight-line basis over the period ol operation of aporoximately 45 years,
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HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS TRLUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Basis of preparation and material accounting policy infermation (Continued)
{k}  Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax Is recognised n the income statement,
except to the axtent that it relates o itams recognised in other comprehansive income or directly in egquity. In this
case, thi tax s akéo recognised in ather comprehenshe income ar directly 0 equity, respectiely

The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the @x faws enacted ar substantively enacted at the end
of the reporiing period In the countrizs where the group compan‘es operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluales positions Laken in L returms with respect 1o sifuaticens in which applicable
tax regulation B subject o interpretation and establishes previsions whore apprapeate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax autharities,

Deferred tax is provided in full wsing the liabilties method, on lemporary differences arisng between the tax
bases of assers and liabiities and their carrying amounts n the financlal statements. Deferred tax assets are
recognised 10 the extent that it is prabable that future taxable profit will be avalab'e against which the temporary
differences can be ublised

Deferred tax assets and fiablibes are offset when there is a legally enforceable nght to offset current tax assets
HTAlFEL Cusrent tox [Labities and whien the deferred tax sssets snd Habilities relate 1o income taxes levied by the
samiE @xation aulhority on either the faxabie entity o different laxable emaiies where therg is an inlention 1o
settle the balances an a net basis,

(Il Investments

Investments {other than investments in subsidiary companies. assocated companles o [int ventures) are
nan-derivative equity financial investments which are measured at fair value, Management Is eligible (o make
an Irrevacable election, on an instrument-by-instrument basis, on equity iFvestments other than those heald for
trading to present changes in falr value through profit or loss ar fair valee through other comprebenshe income
{FWYOLr] The Group has elected 1o measure as AYOLL to which any fair value gains or losses accumuiated in
the revaluation reserve accaurt will ng longer be reclassified o prafit or oss fotewing the derecognition of such
Investment. Dividends from Investmients continued (o be recognised as other operating Income In the income
statement when the right to recelee payment is established, Impalrment losses (and reversal af impairment losses)
afe not reparted separately fram strer changes in fair value.

{m} Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets at amortised cost are debt Instruments that are held for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash fows represent sobely payments of principal and interesyL They are initally recognised at fair
value plus iransaction Costs tha are daecthy atinbutable o the aciuisition of the financial asses at amodised
cost and are subsequently measured at amortisad cost less Impairment. Appropriate allowances for estimateg
irrecaverable amounts are recognized in the income statement based on expected credit loss ("ECLT) modal,
Interest icome using e elfective interest method B recognised in the incorme statemeant.

in}  Trade and ather recelvables
Trade and other recewvables are initially recognsed at fair value and subsequently measured at amartised
cosl using (he effective interest method, less provision (o impalement. Appropriate allowances for esrimaged
irrecoeerable amounts are recognesed in the intome statement

(o] Inwentories

Iriritories consst mainly of replacement parts and are stated a1 the lower of cast and net realisabie valee, Cost
is calculated on the waighted average bass,

{p}  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equbalents cormprise cash on hand, demand deposits with maturity less than three montns, and
bank overdrafis, if amy:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basis of preparation and material accounting policy infermation (Continued)
Borrowings and borrowing costs

The borrowings are inibaly measured at far value, net of transaction casts, and are subsequently carried at
amortised cost Any difference betwean the proceads (net of transaction costs) and the settlermsent or redemption
of barrowings = recognised ceer thee period of the borrowings using the elfective interest method.

Borrowing costs directly attributable 1o the acquisition, construction or production of qualiféng assets, which are
agsets that necessarify Lake @ substantial perod of tme W get ready for thelr intenced use or sale, are added 1o
the cost of those assets, wntil such time as the assets are subslantislly reacy for their intended wse or sale, Al
other DOFFOWINE BoSLE Are Fracognited & [he Incame siemant in the period in whaoh they are incurred

Trade and ather payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair walue and subsequently measured at amartsed cost using
the efiective inferest method,

Provisions

Provisions ofe fecognsed when it 2 piobablé that anooutflow of econome bienelits will be requited Lo sotile &
present obligation as a result of past events and a reiable estimare can bBe made af the amoum of the abligaion,

Asset impalrment
Impairment of Gnancial assers

The Group applies the ECL model 1o assess imparment of finanoal assets dassified at amortised cost and debit
instrumants measured a1 AYOCL The impaisment methodalogy 1o be applied depends an whether there has been
a significant increase in cradit risk

Fer prade receables, the Group applies the simphified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which reguires lifetime
expected losses for amounts due fram customers to be recognised from initial recognition of the trade
recaivanles.

Impairment of athe: asses

Aszets that have an indefinite useful Iife are tested for impairment annually and when there Is indication that
they may be impaired, Assets that are subject 1o deprecation and amostisation are reviewed for impairment 1o
determing whather there iS5 any indication that the carrying walues of these assers rmay ot be recoverable and
have sufferad an Impalrment loss. IF any such indication exists, the recoverable amaunt of the asset 5 estimated
in order to determing the extent of the impairmern loss, i any. The recoverable amournt is the higher of an asset's
fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. Such impasrment loss is recognised in income statement except
whefa the assat is carriad at valuation and the impairmant |o5% does not excead the revaluation surpius for that
asset, i which case it 1S treated 33 a revaluaban decrease and s r:m.gnlsm inather comprehensve income,

Mon-current assets held for sale

Mor-Current dsSels are classiled as held for sabe I their carrying amounts will De ecovered principally through a
sake transaclon rather than through comnuing use and 2 sple is considered highly probable, They are msasured
2t the lower of their camying amaount and falr value less costs 1o sell, except for assets such as de‘erred fax assets,
asets arising from employee benelits, financlal assets and nvestment property Lthat are carried at far value and
cortractual rights wder insurance contracts, which are specifically exempt from this requicement.

A pain of loss not previcusly recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current assets i recognised at the date
of derecognition, Mon-turrent assels are not depreciated or amariised while they are classified as held for sale.
Interest and other expenses attributasle to the liabilities of a dsposal group classfied as held for sale continue 1o
b recognisad.

Mo current assets classfied as neld for sale are presemted separatety from the other assers in the consoldated
statement of financial position.
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2 Basis of preparation and material accounting policy infermation (Continued)
{v)  Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

Derkative financial instruments are uiilised by the Group in the management af its forelgn currency and interest
rate exposures. The Group's policy is not to utllise derivative financial instruments far trading or spaculative
purposes. Dertvatlve financial instruments are initally measured at falr value on the contrac date, and are
remeasured o @i value al subsequent reporting dates, Changes in far value are recognised based on whether
certain qualifying criteria under HKFRS 9 are satisfied in order to apaly hedge accounting, and if so, the nature of

The Graup documonts at the incegtion of the nedging transaction the economic relationship between hedgng
instruments and hedged tems Incuding whether the hedging mstrument = expected to offset changes in cash
fiows. of hedged ltems. The Group documents S risk management objecthve and strategy for underaking various
hedge transactions at the incepton of each hedge relationship.

Derivatrves designated a5 hedging instruments 1o hegge the far value of recognised assers or Rabilites may
guatify a5 fair value hedges. The Group malnly &nters Nt interest rale Swap CcONracts 10 swap Certain Med
Interest rate borrowings nto Moating interest rate borrowings. Changes in the falr value of these dervative
contracks, togethes with the changes in the fair value of the hedged assets o lishilities attributable to the hedged
fisk arid recognised 15 the iNCOMe Statement AL this Same Lme, Lhe carrying amaunt of the hedped asten or Rabihity
in the stavemeny of financial position is adjusted for the changes M lair value,

Derwvatres desgnated as hedging nstruments 1o hedge against the cash fiows attributable to recognised assets
or llabiiities may qualfy as cash flow hedges, The Group mainky enters into [} cross curréncy Inferest rate swap
CONLracts 1O Swap certain fixed ingesest rate United Stes dollar gedrs o fxed: inpérest rate Hing Kong dallar
debas; (i) cross currency Interest rate swap contracis o swap ceraen fioating interest rate United States doftar
debis to fixed Interest rate Hong Kong dollar debits; and (i) interest rate swap contracts to swap certain fpating
interest rae United S1stes dollar debts to fixed interest rate United States dollar debis (o hedge against the
foreign currency and interest rate risk. The Group excludes foreign currency basis spread of these cross currendy
Fwaps in the hedge designation, The change in fair value of the foreign currency basis spread (o the extent it
refates (o the hedged ltem) & recognised in ether comprehenske income and s accumulated in 2 separate Losts
of hedging reserve under equity, The amount would be amortised to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis. Changes in the far value relating to the effective partion of derivative contracts designated as hedging
ingruments qualifying as casn flow hedges sre recagnised in other camprehansive income and accumulated
under the heading of hedging reserve. The gain or joss relating to the neffective portion s recognised n the
income statement. Amounts accumulsted are removed from nedging reserve and costs af hedging reserve and
recognised in the income statement in the periods when the hedged derative contract matures

Derivatives thal do ol quality for hedge accounting urder HKFRS 9 will be accounted for with the changes n fair
valug Deing recognised in the income statement.

{w] Pension plans
Persian plans are classited nto defined beesefit and defined contribation plans

Penshon costs for defined benefit plans are aszessed using the projected unit credit method. Under this method,
the cost of providing pensions is charged to income statement 5o as (o spread the regular cost over the future
sorre ives of employees in accordance with the advice of the acuanss who canry aut a vaiuation of the plans,
The pension obligation is measured as the present value of the estimated future cash outflows using inenest
rates determined by relerence 1o market yields at the end of the reporing ceriod based an high quality corporate
bonds with currency and term similar to the estimated term of benefit obligations.

Rarm@asurements anising rom defined banefit plans are recognised in other comarehensve mcome in the year
in which they ocour and reflected imvmediately i pension reserve, REmeasuraments camprise actuarg gains and
Ipsses, the return on plan assers (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benafit lkabi
asset) and any change in the effect of the asset celling (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
definad bansfit liabilityfassat].

The contribusions to the defined consributkon plans are charged (o The INCome SLatement mn e year incurred,
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Basis of preparation and material accounting policy infermation (Continued)
Fension plans (Continued)

Pension costs are charged against the income statement within staff casts. The pension plans are generally
funded by the relevanst Group companies faking into account the recemmendations of independent qualfied
actuaries and by payments from employees for contributory plans.

Forelgn exchange

The consolidated financial statements are presenied in Hong Kong dollars, which is same as the functional
curroncy afl HPH Trust.

Transaciions in lorelgn currencies are converted a1 the rates of exchange ruling a1 the transaction dates
Keanetary assets and liabllities are translated a1 the rates of exchange rusng at the end of the regorting period.

The fimancial statements of foregn operations (Le. subsidiary companies, a550Cated COmMpanies, QINt venqures
ar branches whose activitles are based or conduttead in @ country of currency other than those of the Trust) are
translated inte Hang ang dollars using the year end rates of exchange for the statement of financial position
iterms and the average rates of exchange for the year for the income statement jterms. Exchange differences are
frecoEnised i SUher Comprenensve Income and accumulated under the neading of exchange reserve, Exzhange
differensices ansing from loreign currency borrowings and other currency instruments designated &5 hedges of
such owerseas imsestments, are recognised i other comprehansive ncome and accumulated under the heading
of exchange reserve.

Enchange differences arising from (ransation of Imter-commiparty loan balances belwean Group entities ane
recognised In other comprehensive income and acopmulated under the heading of exchange resene when
such loans form part of the Group's net srvesiment in a forelgn engity, On the disposal of a foreign operation
e, a disposal of the Group's entire Interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal invoiing loss of control aver
a subsidiary that includes a forélen operation, a dispasal mvobeing loss of joint control ower a joint venture that
includes a foregn operatian, of a desposal imvobarg bess of sgneficant mAluence over an assacated company that
inclusdes a foreign operation), all of the exchange gains or losses accumulated in axchange reserve in respeact of
that operation attributable to the memers of the company are transferred ol of the exchange reserve and are
recagnised in the income stEtement.

In addition, 0 relation 1o a parisl disposal of 3 subsdiary that does not result In the Group losing control over
the subsidiary, the proporiconate share of accumulated exchange diferences s re-attributed (0 non-controfng
Interests and is not recognised in the income statement For all ather partial disposals (Le. partial disposals of
aszocated companies ar cint ventures that do net result in the Graup losing significant miluence or joint contral),
the proportionate share of (he accumulated exchange differences is transferred out of the exchange reserye and
if recognsed in the Income staemsnt.

All other exchange differences are recogrised in the income statemenl

Distributions to the Trust's unitholders

Distributions to the Trusts unitholders are recorded In equity in the perled In which they are approved far
payment.
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Basis of preparation and material accounting policy infermation (Continued)

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a seres of transactions, |s or contains a lease if the Graup
determines that the arrangament cornways a right to controd the use of an identified asset for a period of tme in
exchanpe lor consideration, Such determination is made on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement.
regardiess of whether the arrangements take the begal form of 3 lease

l

i

Assets leasad to the Group

Leases are inially recagrised a5 a fght-of use acser and carrespanding liabiliy a1 the date of which the
leased asset is avallable for use by the Group, Each lease payment |5 allocated between the lab Sy and
finance cost, Tre finance cost is charged to the Income statement over the lease perled 50 a5 10 produce a
constant peviodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the labiity for sach period. The right-ol-use
asset Is depreciated over the shorter of the asser's useful life and the leass term an a Straight-ine bass.

Assels leased 1o the Group and the corresponding Rabilties are ritlally measured on a present value basis.
Leaze lishilities include the net presamt value of the foliowing lease payments:

flod payments (inchiding in-substance fxed paymnants), (et any [sase intenthaes receiable
varizhle bease payments that are based on an index or a rate; and

oayments of penalties lor terminating the lease, |f the ledse term reflects the Group, as a lesses,
BxXBTCISING an aplion 1o eminate the lease,

The lease payments are discounted using the inmerest rate implicit in the kease, if that rate can De
datarmined, o the incremental borrowing rate of the respective entities. Right-of-use assets ara measured
al cost comprising the following

the amount of the initlal measurement of [2ase Habilly,

any lease payments mace at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentive recaved:

any initial direct costs; and

resioration oosts

Payrments associated with short-term leases and wases of ow-value assels are recognised on o straight-line
bass a5 an expense in the income statemant. Shortterm lpases are leases with a lease torm ol 12 monghs
or k255, Low-value assets comprise equipment and small items of affice furniture.

Astels lpased Gul by the Group

A lease is classified a5 a fingnce lease if it rensfers supstantially all the rsks and rewards InCidental o
ownership of an underlying asset, A lease s classified as an operating lease Il it does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental fo awnership af an underlying asset, Incame received
urder operating leases net of ary inCentives provided (o the leasing compary are credaed [o the income
satement on 2 straight-line basis over the lease periods,

Revenue and other income recognition

Reverues are recogresed when or as the control of the good or senice 15 transferred 1o the customer. Depending
on the terms of the contract and the laws that apply (o the comtract, contrel of the good or sendce may be
rransferred over time ar at a paint i tima,

Control of the good or servics (s trarsferred over tma il the Group's performance provides all of the benefits
fecetved and consumed simultaneousyy by the customer
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2 Basis of preparation and material accounting policy infermation (Continued)
{aa} Revenue and other income recognition (Continued)

If controd of the asset transfers over time, revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
the progress towards comiplete satisfaction of that performance obilgation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at &
peint in time when the customer obtains control of the asset.

The propress towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation Is measured based on direct
measurements of the value transferrad by the Group to the customer.

Transaction prce of o contract shall be allacated o indhidual perfoemance obligation (or distine good of aervice)
he objective when alocating the wransactian price s for an entity to allocate the transaction price 1o gach
performance cbligation In an emount thet depicts the amount of conslideration (o which the entity expects (o be
entithed in exchange for trandlerring the promised goods or sendces o the customear.

Revenue is recognised over pme:

m for parts and redated =services, transporatan and logistics solutions along with the progress when servite is
rendered; and

1) for management and senvice Tee income, and system developrment ang support fees slong with the
progress when senvice s rendered,

Irterest income is recognsed aver time on a4 time proparton basis usng the effective intarest method,
{ab} Government Grant

Subsidy from the government ks recognised at their fair values where there is a reasonable assurance that the
subsidy will be receieed and the Group will camply with all attached conditions. The amounts are fecognised
within “other apersing income” in the Incame statement,

3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Mete 2 inciudes 3 summary of the material accountng policy infarmation used In the preparaton of the financlal
staterments. The preparation of financial statements ofien requires the use of judgements Lo sefect specific
accounting methods and policies from several acceptable alternatives. Furthermore, significant estimates and
assumptions concerning the future may be required m selecung and applying those methods and palicies in
the finangial statements. The Group bases a5 estimates and judgemants on historical experience and various
other assumptions that it beleves are reasonable under the croumstances. Actual results may differ from these
estimates and |udgements uncer different assumptions or conditions

Ths fodloveng 1S & review of the more significant asscimplions and estimates as well a5 the accounting polides and
methocks tsesd in the Bparmhan af g financial sisements

{a] Longlived assets
Thee Group has made Substanta’ vesiments in rangile (ong:wed assers in 15 container terminal operating
business. Changes in technalopy or the intended use of these assets may cause the estimated perlod of use or
value of these assets to change.

The Group cansiders s assels impairment accounting policy ta be a palicy that requires are of the most
extershe apolications of judgements and estimates by managemnt,
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3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)
{a) Long lived assers (Continued)

Assets that are subject to depreciaton are reviewed to determine whether there is any indication that the carnying
value of these assats may not be recoverable and have suffered an impairment toss. IF any such indication exists,
the récoverable amaounts of the assets are estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
il ary, The recowerable amount & the hegher of an assets far value less costs 1o sell and valus-in-use, Such
impairment loss s recognised in the income staterment except where the asset |s carried at valuation and the
impairment loss does not exceed the revalustion surplus for that asset, in which case it is treated as a revaluation
decraass and is remgnlseﬂ in athe: comprehansive income.

Management's judpements are required In the area of asset Impaiement, particularly In assessing: (1) whether
an event has cocurred that may Indicate that the related asset values may not be recoverable; (2] whather the
carryirg valus of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amound, being the higher of fair value less costs
1o 52l ar net present value of future cash flows which are estimated based upon the connued use of the asset
in the Group: and (3) the appropriate key assumplions 1o be apolied in preparing casn flow projections including
whether these cash low peojecthons are discountad using an appropriste rate, Changing the assumptions selected
by management to determine the kevel, il any, of impairment, Including the discount rates o the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materlally affect the net present value used in the impairmenit
st and &8 & result affect the Grous's financyl conditan and results of operstions, If there i2 a significant adverse
change in the projected performance and resufing fulure cash low projections, & may be necessary (o take an
Impairment charge to the income statement

b}  Goadwill

For the purpases of impairment tests, the recoverable amount of goodwll is determined based on value-in
use calculations. The value-in-use cabculations primarily use cash flow projections based on financial projections
approved by managemeant. There are a number of assumptions and estimates irvolved for the preparation aof
cash flow peojections. The key assumptions adopted In the value-in-use calculations ane based on management's
best estimates, past experience and new business developments. Changes (o sey assumplons can affect
significantly the results of the impalrmant (ests.

Key assumptions are made with respect to the expected grawth in revenues and cost of services rendered,
tirming of future captal expenditures, termingl growth sates and seaction of dacount rate, which approximatehy
reflect the risks involved, The growth bn revenues will be affected by the growth in both the volume of containers
handied, tarlff and new business developments, The volume of condainers handled will be impacted by economec
and global market conditions, structural changes within the shipoing ling Industry and infiuenced by the
perlormance and growth of regonal and internaticnal trading economies, if key expart markets for local exparters
EXpRTIENCE &7 BCONomic downturn of recession, exporl volumes may decrease, The growth of Ll depends on
thee Group's overall compatitheness, which 5 determened by o number of faciors, such as geographical reach
and cannectvity, operating efficiency, berth avalabllity, mega wessel handbing capasility, technology offerings,
transpartation and logstcs network and ancilary sendces and facilities.

A sgrificant pertion of cost ol sendces rendered 15 libour cost which will be impacted by Wbour sugaply, imllation
and cast initlatives adogred. In addition, the introduction of ever larger vessels by snipping lines will require
upgrading of equipmient and new work practices to increase productivity so as (o memain competitive.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)
Customer relationships

Customer re‘atianships aoquired in a business combination are recaognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Customer ralationships are carried at cost less accumuiated amortisation. Amartisation is cakculated using the
straight-lire method over thé expected (e of the customer relationshlps.

The Group considers its impaiment accounting policy bo be a palicy that requires ang of the mast extensyve
appiications of judgements ard estimates by management. Intanglble assets with definite useful lves that are
subliesct 10 amorisaton are reviewed Lo determine whether there is any indication that (e carmying value of these
assets may not Be recoverable and rove sulfered an impaiement loss, IF amy such Indication exigts, the recovrabie
amaunis of the inangile asses are estimated in order 1o determine the extent of the impairmena loss, if any,
The recoverabie amount s the higher of an asset’s falr value less costs (o sell and value-in-use, Such Impairment
loss B recognised in the income statement. Management's judiements are required in the area af intangible
asset impairment, pacticulardy in aesessing: (1] whether an event has occurred that may indicate that the related
asser values may not be recoverable; and (2} whether the carmying vaue of an asset can be supported oy the
recoverabie amound, being the higher of fair value less costs 1o sell or net present value of future cash flows which
#re estimated based upon the continued use of the asset in the Group.

Depreciation

Depreciation of operating assels constitutes a substansal operating cost for the Group. The cost of Teed assets
Is charged a5 deprecistion expense aver the estimated useful lives of the respective assats using the straight-dine
mithod. The Group periodically reviews changes in technoliogy and industry conditions, asset retirement activity
wrich resiciual values 1o deerming adjustrments 1o estimated remaining useful lves amd dapreciation rates.

Actual ecanomic Ives may differ from estimated useful lives, Penodic reviews could resulf in-a change in
depreciable les and therefore degreciation expense In fulure pericds.

Accrual of net revenue

Revenue ks accrued at peviod end with reference (o the throughput Randled and the terms ol agreemenis for
container handling service. Consequently, recopnition of revenue is based on the volume of seraces rendered
a5 wirll 5 the [atest tarifl agreed with customars o Best sstimated oy management. This astimate i based on
the |atest tariff and other Industry considerations as approgriate,  the aoua! revenwe differs from the estimatea
accrual this will hawe an impact on revenue i futwre periods.

Pension

The Group operates several defined benefit plans, Pension costs Tor defined benefit plans are assessed using
the projectad unit credit method in accordance with HEAS 19 (2011), Employes Benefits. Under this method, the
cost of providing pensions is charged to the income slatemant 5o 25 Lo spread the regular cost over the future
service |ives of employees in accordance with the advice of the acluaries who tarry out a vahsation of the plana,
The pesion assets/obligatons are measwred af the poesent vatues of the estimated future cash outfiows using
interest rates determinged by reference 10 market yields at the end of the regoneng period based on high quality
corporate bonds wilh currencies and terms similar to the estimated terms of ceneft obligations,

Remeasuremsents assing from defined benafit plans are recognised in other compreRenshe income in the year
in which they aceur and reflected immediately in pension resenve. Remeasurements comprise actuarial gains and
losses, the return on plan assets (excuding ameunts included kn net interest on the net defined benefit liabdiny
asset) and any change in the effect of the asset ceiling {excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liabilingfassat)

Maragement appeinted actuaries to carry outl @ full valuation of these pension plans (o determing the pension
assetsfobligations that are required o be disclased and accounted for in the financial starements in accordance
with the HEFRS requiremants.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)
Pension (Continued)

The attuaries use assumpiions and estimates in determining the fair value of the defined benefit plans and
evaluate and update these assumptions an an annual basis. Judpements are required (o determine the principal
actuarial assumptions to determine the present value of defined benelit obligations and service costs, Chanpes 1o
the pringipal actuarial assumpticns can significantly affect the present value of plan obvigations and senice o5
in future periods.

Tax

The Group is subject ta income txes in diferent |urisdioions. Significant jedpements are required in determining
the provision for Income taxes. There are many transact‘ons and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncerain during the ardinary course of business. The Group recagnises liabifties lor anticipated
tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due Where the final tax autcome of these
maners is different from the amounts that were previousty recorded, such differences will iImpact the incomse Tax
and deberrad 1ax provisions in the pernd inwhich such determination |s made.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability mathod, on temparary differences arisng betwean the tax bases
of aszets and llabilites ang their AN values in the financial staterments, Deforfed [ax 25568 are recognised
far wnused tas losses carried forward [o thie extent i & probable that future taxable profits will be avallabhe
against which the unused tax losses can be utilised, based an afl avallable evidence. Recognitaon primarily imaoives
judgements regarding the future financial performance of the particu‘ar legal entity or tax group In which the
deferred tax asset has been recogrised. & varlaty of other factors are also evaludted in cansidering whether
there is corincing evidkence that it is probable that some portion o all ol the deferred tax assats will ultirmiiedy
be realised, such as the existence of taxable tempaorary differences, group redief, tax planning sirategies and The
periods in which estimated tax losses can be utilised. The carmying amount of deferred tax assets and related
financial models and budgets are reviewed at the end of the reporting pericd and to the extent that there &
insufficlent convincirng evidence that sufficient taxable profits will be availanle within the wilisation periods o allow
utllisation of the cary forward tax lesses, the asset balance will be reduced and charged 1o the income statemen

Revenue and other income and segment information

Revenue and other Income

2024 2023
HES'000 HES' 000
Revveriue

Rendering of port and related servoes 10,977,853 10,053,421
Rendering of transporiation and logistcs solutions 250,543 180,623
Management and setvice fee income 38,799 36,649
System development and support fees 7142 6,596
Ohers 1,747 1610
11,223,000 16,278,205

Cher income
Interest Incoms 324179 356,223

11,567,268 10,635,522

212/317



b}

EDINETOOOO
OO000o0oO0oOdoooooooo0o000odboonoonoo0onoonoan(e2s351)
Ooooooooooooooooonoao

ANMLUAL REPORT 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Revenue and other income and segment information (Continued)

Segment information

The chief operating decision maker has been determined to be the executive committes of HPH Trust (the
“Executive Committee”], The Execulve Committee reviews the internal repartng in order (o assess performance
and aBocate resources Managameant has detgrmingd the operating segmednts bDased on these repons.

HPH Trust 5 prncipally engaged in imvesting In, develoging, opefaling and managing deep-waler Conlamer porns
and port ancillary sensces and therefore managemant considars that HPH Trust oparates in one single business
SPEMEAt Af two geographecal locatons

Revenue s recognised ower tme and disclosures by feographical location ars shon below

Revenue and ather income Mon-currént assets®
2024 2023 2024 2023
HE$000 HES 000 HEL000 HE$000
Heng Kong 2476584 2515073 17.841.384 18714522
Ma'niand China D00 6B5 8120447 51,607 864 53,460,706

11,567 2160 1635523 (49,449 258 73175238

¥ Exclude finandial instroments, deferred tix asets and pension assets

Operating profit
Operating profit is stated Mier craditing and charging tha (ollowing:

2024 2023
HESD000 HES000
Crpditing
Dipickend income hrom Arer Ports Econoenic Benelils (Mote 17) 3357 18567
Met galn on disposal of fed assets 4,134 -
Wage, salary and other subsidies (Note) - 237
Charging
ALditor's femuneésaiion
- audit services 17353 15962
RO AUdil SERACES 11053 1.287
Amortisation
- leasehold land and land use rights 1,289.476 1,290,061
= rallway usage rights 486 497
- cLstomer relationships 334,206 334,206
Depreciation of fixed asse1s 11885933 1,258,237
Depreciation of right-of-use assats within fixed assets 11,262 11,319
Met loss on dsposal of fixed J5sels . 5.059
Short-term fease costs for
office premises pnd po faclites 53,1 53,334
Staff costs fimcluding amount charged withen cost of services renderad)
= Wages, salafles and other benelMs 1,281,975 132174
- Pension costs 108358 102,895
Net exchange loss 7,124 48,765
MNote

Manly benefits received from government wnder CEVID-19 related employment suppon scheme recognised in
other operating income for the year ended 31 December 2023
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6 Interest and other finance costs

2024 2023

HKS' 00D HES' 000

Bank foans and cverdrafts Shb493 281,564
Guaranteed notes 231,383 JER GBS
Leans Irom related companies [Mote 22) 19,226 -
L Irom nan-Contraling imeresys 1,514 1,547
L=ase liahilities 123 gay
Other finance costs 36,786 35,439
B54,925 E72.022

7 Tax

2024 2023

HKS000 HES$' 000

Current tax 1,568,841 1.316,687
Deferred tax (Moge 18) [349,606) [470,008)
1,219,235 B=6,591

Thie tax chige on the Group's profit befode tas differs from the tweoreticas) amoust that would arse using the
weighted average [ax rane of the Group as follows:

2024 2023
HKS'000 HES' 000
Prafit befora tax exciuding share of nat lsses after tax of joint venturas and

Adsotiated companies 3.523,185 24=810M
Tax caltulsted af weighted sverage tax rate of 27 9% (2023 245.3%) nE2.8:2 718214
Tas @eemprian [ China (50178
Income not sutyect (o tax {27.848) (22,8300
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes BaBa7 109427
withnolding 1as en unremined easnings 141,167 125857
Utisaton of previously unrecognised fax losses (133) {7
Owerprosissan in priar year [6,279) [37,058)
Tax larssis Aol recognised 33,732 3,838
Cihers 1125) (a7
Tortal tax 1219,235 B=6,591

The Group is within the scope of the Crganisation for Economic Co-operation and Dewsbopment Pilar Two model
nudes, Fillas Two legislation was enacted in Sangapore, the junsdiction in which HPH Trust is established, and will
come into effect from 1 January 2025, Since Pillar Two legslation was not effective at the reporing date. the
Group has no relstad tax esposure. The Group spplies the exception to recognising and disclosing infarmation
about deferred tax assets and delerred tax lizbilities related to Pillar e income tases,

Linder the legisiaton, the Group s lisble 1o pay a top-up tax for the difference berween the sffectve tax rate
under G'oba’ Antl-Base Eroslon Rules for each jurisdction and the 15% minimum rate.

Based on management's assessmeni, the applestion of Pk Two legslation i not expected to have material
impacts to the Group.
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Distributions
2024 2023
HES'000 HES'000
For the pericd from T July 2022 1o 31 December 2022
Oistribution of B.00 HY cents per unit - GO6.888
For the peticd from 1 fanuary 2023 10 30 june 2023
Distribution of 5,50 HE cems per uni = 479,111
For the pericd fram 1 july 2022 to 31 December 2023
Distributicn of 7.70 HE cents per unit 670,754 -
For the period from 1 January 2024 to 30 june 2024
Distribution of 5,00 HK cents per urnit 435,556 .

1106310 1,175,993

On 7 February 2025, the Bagrd of Directars of [he Trustes-Manager approved the dstribution of 770 HE cems
per un't for the financial result from 1 july 2024 1o 31 December 2024 (2023, 7.70 HK cenis per unith amouwrting
to HK$627.2 milllon {2023; HK$670.8 millon) and payable on 28 March 2025, This distribution s not reflected in
these financial statemeants and will be recognised in equity in the finandial year ending 31 Decamber 2025

Earnings per unit

The calculation of earnings per unit & based o0 profit attributable to unithalgers of HPH Trust of HASE49.975,000
for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023 HHES$233,460,000) and an 8,711,101,022 unils in Bsue (2023
B, 711,107,022 units in issus)

Diluted earnmgs per unit ks the same as the basic earmings per unit for the years ended 31 December 2024 and

2023
Fixed assets
Container Other
handling fined
Group Properties equipment Barges assets Total
HES'000 HES'000  HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000
2024
Opening nat ook amaount 13,763,585 SATT 47 07 ITRTTT 19622016
Additinns 56,927 HL965 - 2,068 122,960
Transfer from projects under deselopment
(Mo 11) 62,730 354 B26 - 36304 4534930
Depraciation [373301) {565628) [99) (55,767 {1,200,7195)
Disposals 230 [24) - {11} [E72)
Transfer to assets classified as hald for sal2
{Mote 24) (49,7583} (7.035) - {1,855) [SE.653)
Currency transiation differences {48,1348) (2.649) - {2,269 [B0,116)
Clasing net book amaount 13,205,743 L.354. 202 BOB 58877 18919630
AL 31 Decemnber 2004
Cost 21092756 14362911 Q484 1116223 36581374
Actumulated depraciation (7.BB7.013) {9008 709} [BETG) (757,346) (17661.744)
et book amaount 13,205,743 5354, 002 B08 358877 189194630
169
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Fiwed assets (Continued)
Container Other
handling fixed
Group Properties  equipment Barges assets Total
HKS000 HES000  HKS'0OO0 HKS'000 HES$'D00
023
Oyprening nat book amcunt 14326129 LEST M4 1.003 raAans 20357782
Acdions 22834 6044 - 15900 90,778
Transfer from projects under development
{Maote 11) 70448 380013 - 58971 Si8.430
Depraciation (605,184} {607 SB4) (98} (56,792) {1,.270055)
[ispasats - L EE] - (18] [B£3)
Currency transiason differences (5006400 {11.603) - {2,692 [6a535)
Clxsing nel book amourdt 13,763,585 5477747 207 ITTTT 1622016
Ar 31 December 2033
Ciom 21,179460 13911329 9484 1,700,706 36201978
Accumulated depreclation (715875  (BA331362) BS77) (721928} {(16579.962)
Mat book amournt 13,763,585 5477747 907 379,777 19622016

Mota:

This Grnurr P 159 ilgh[ o conirel the use af cemaln assets meluded 0 properties, comasner ||.1ru:!I||lE EjLipTme
and other fived assets for a perod of time through lease arrangements. Lease arrangements wih terms of 2
to 5 years are negotizted on am indvidual basis and contain a wide range of terms and conditions. During the
year anded 31 Decenber 2024, additions 1o the rghtl-ol-use assels under properties and other fieed assels were
HE$1 3,827,000 (2023 nil) and desposals 10 the rght af-use assets under ather fixed assets due to wermination of
Iease tarms wera HKSH2,000 (H022: nl) for the year and 21 December 2024

The carrying amounts of right-ol-use assets included in feed assets are as follows:

2024 2023
HKS'000 HHES'000
Propentes ThaT4 12855
Other fixed assets 535 55
17,009 15210

Depreciation charge for right-of-use assets recognised in the consalidated Income statement |5 as follows
2024 2023
HES'000 HES'000
Propenes 10,761 11497
Other fived assets 501 322
11,262 11,819
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Projects under development

Group 2024 2023
HES'000 HES'000
AL beginnieg of the year 664,194 762,911
Additions 332,300 411,508
Transior (o fixed acsats (Note 10} [493.930) (5094300
Currency ransiation differences {1,042 (BE5)
A end of the year 501,672 &b 104

Projects under developmant mainly represant the cost of construction of port facilities in Hong Kong and

haintasd China,

Leasehold land and land use rights

Group 2024 2023
HKS'000 HESDOD
Met book value
At beginning of the year 11,858.2B6 331785968
Amortisation [1,289.476) {1,290,067)
Transfer to assets classified as held for 4ale (Mote 24) (T0,443)
Currency translation differences (32.431) B30T
At end of the year 0462936 31,858,286
Cost 47900830 48,179,828
Accumulated amartEation {17,437.9548)  (16321.543)
304529360 31,858,286

The net book valee of land use rights, which are accounted for as right-ol-use assets, was HKS6.346.1 52,000
at 31 December 2024 (2023 HEKS6,627,545,0001. The corresponding amortisation charge for the year was

HKS281,793,000 (2023: HK$282,053,000)

Rallway usage rights

Group 2024 2023
HKS'000 HES'000

Met book value

Al beginnirg of the year B.65E2 Q400

Amuortisation [4BE] [487)

Currency translation differences (228] (245)

At end of the year 7,944 BB58

Cost 13723 1430

Accumulated amorisanon (3,779 (5673

7,044 8,658
mn
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Intangible assets

[a) Customer relatlonships
Group 2024 2023

HKS000 HES'000

Net book value
AL Beginning of the year 4164948 4,499,154
Amortisation [334,206) [334,206)
At end of the year 3830,742 A, 16,948
Cost £.440,000 B AL0,000
Accumulated amaortisation [+,609,258) {4.275,052)
Ap end of thie year 830,742 4,164,948

(b}  Goodwil

The Group has ane business segment and two geographica’ CGU to which goodwill is allccated as follows:

Group 2024 2023
HKS'000 HES'000

Hong Kang .

Manland China 11 270,044 11,270,044

11,270,044 11,270,044

2024 2023

HKS'000 HES'000

AL beginning of the year 11,270,044 11,270,044
Impairment of goodwill faccumulated: HE$30.4 billion) - -
At end of the year 17,270,044 11,270,044

As in the prior year, management performed an impalrment assessment based on value-in-use caloulations
using cish fiow progecions based on financial budgers appraved by management coversng 4 Syear perod
and a further cutlook for & years, which is considered appropriate i vew of the long-term nature of the
terminal busness. Management determined that no imoairment of goodwill or other operating assets are
required for the year énded 371 Decernber 2024, The imparment methodology assumed termnal values
ard descount mates of 2% - 3% (2023 2% - 3MW) and 8% - 906 (2023: 9% - 10%) per annim, respectivily.
Terminal values are determined by considering both internal and external factors relating to the port
operation and discount rates refec specific risks relaing to the relevant business.

The assumptions regarding the growth rates in revenue and cost of services rendered used In the
CLETRNT YBar's ASSeSSMEnts. ncorporated new busingss opportunities identified, For BusTralion purposes.
a hypothetical 0.5% cecrease in the revenus growth rate, a 0.5% increase in costs of senices rendered
and a 0.5% increase o the discount rate, with all other variables and assumptions he'd constant, would
decrease the recoverable amount of the Hong Kong CGLL, by HKSZ 2 billion, HK$0.5 billion and HXS1.9
bellion rezpeciively and of the Mainland Ching CGU, by HESZE billion, HKS0.4 billlon and HKS3.2 billlen,
respeciively.

Actual results In the future may differ materially from the sensitivity analysis due to dewvelopments in the
Elobal markets and changes in economic conditions which may cause fluctuations in preswth and market
interest rates 1o vary and therelore L is Fnoortard 10 note that the hypothetical armownts so generated do
net represent a projection of likely future everts and profits or losses
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Associated companies

Group 2024 2023
HEKS'000 HES D00

Share of net assets 2,399 10E498

Loans 1o an associated company - nom-currert 747300 670,350
TE8.699 778,848

As at 37 Decemper 2034, vwo Syear pans of RMB600,000,000 (approximate 10 HKIEIE000,000) ana
AMEBTOS5,000,000 (approximate to HEKE111,300.000) provided o an associated company are unsecured, interest
bearing at a fixed rate of 2.75% per annum and 2.50% per annum, respectively, and repayable In April ang
December 2028, The carryng amount of the koans 10 an assocated campany approamaies thelr fair value,

Details of the princpal associated companies at 31 Decemper 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

Effective
place of interest held
Mame establishment Principal activities 2024 2023
Shenzhen Huazhou Ocean China Prenvision of ILI'gbCl-a:t sarvices in 23.84% F3.84%
Development Co, Lid China
Hisrhou imternationa! China Development and operatian of 41.31% £1.31%
Container Terminals & container tepménal
Lirmitad™
Yartian Port Intesmational China Provision af electranic port 27 B4 A
Infarmation Company COMmmumnity system

Lirnited ("YPIFF=
(1] Awdted by PricevaterhouseCoopers network finms
{2 Yamlan Intednations Contaings Tesmnals Larted (0T a 56414 indfirectly hetd subsidary ol HPH Trust, originally held
S0 equty interest n YPLL in 2023, ¥Pwas & joind verture of the Group with efective interest of 2E21%, On 31 August
224, YICT dsposes af 1% eguily intenest in WPl wan cash consideécanion of RMEN 006 D00 (approsimately HKE 96 000]
¥ became an assocated company of the Group wich effectve interest ol §7.64% upan the compistion of dispasal

There is no assoclated company as at 31 December 2024, which In the opindon af the directors of the Trustee-
Manager, is indwidually material (o the Groun,

There are no material contingent liabllities relating to the Group’s Interests in the associated companies,

St ot belaw i5 the Group's share of the year's total comprehensive loss Trom its assocated companies:

2024 2023

HEKS'000 HES'000

Met losses after tax [B7 3801 [B4.727)

Other comprahensive loss [4,843) (4,588)

Total comprafensng lo5s [92.223) [85,315)
173
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Joint ventures
Group 2024 2023
HKS'000 HES'000
Share of net assets £617,651 4,730,234
Lessr accumulated Impalrment [Q30,000) [930,000)
3687651 3E0B.234
Details of principal joint ventuces af 3! Decernber 2024 and 2023 are a5 follows
Place of Effective
Incorporation/ interest held
Mame establishment Principal activities 2024 2023
COSCO-HIT Terminals Hang Kong Development and operation ol a 50.00% 50.00%
(Hong Kiang) Limiged™! CONLAINGr [ermifng
Asla Container Terminals Hang Kang Development and operationofa  A000% 40000
Limited™ cantainer terming’
Baiing Leading Eoge China Provision of logstics servces 50.00% 50.00%
Conaingr Senices
Compamy Limited
Mercury Sky Group Limited™  British Virgin Islands  imvestment hoding 50.00% 50,00%
Shenrhen Leading Fdge China Provision of port agency services A1 00 408 00
Port Services Co. Lod ™
Yaritlan East Port China Development and operation ofa A9.73% 30, 73%
nternaional Contasner contalner termimal
Terminzls Limited
(YERICTp"
WP Cnina Provision of elecronic part N 821%

Comiminity systerm
1 Audited by PricewaternouseCaopers nitwark fams.
A Mot reguired 1o b audied undér the Leaa of the country of incorparation
@ NCT, & 5641 indirectly held subsidiary ef HPH Trust, originaly held 50% equity intercst i YR, in 2023, YPI =as 3 jont
ventune of the Group with efectye inerest of ZR.71%. On 31 August 2024, WCT desposed of 18 equity interest i YFE wih
cash comideration of AMBTG0R000 (approvimatey HICS1 03600000 P became an asscoated company of the Group
with ¢ Mecibae mtered of 27.64% upon ihe completion of dapoial

There 15 no joirt verqure as 9t 31 December 2024, which in the openion of the directors of the Trustes Manager, is
indadiially rratesinl g the Group,

There are no materiad contingent labllities relating 1o the Group's imerests in the oint ventures,

Set out betow 15 the Group's share of the years tatal comprehensive iass fram its jolnt ventures

2024 2023

HHKS'000 HK$'000

Met oszes after tax [#3.360) (35.208)
Onher camprehenshe Ioss [41,368) [&2,088)
Total comprehensive loss 184, 728 (77,384
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Other non-current assets

Group 2024 2023
HKS'000 HES'D00
IMAESTMENLS
Listedd equity securiry 3,060 30,039
River Ports Economic Berafiis (Note) 219,873 242857
250923 ITLE9E
MNote

The River Ports Economic Benedits représent the econamad interest and banalits of the river ports in Nanhal and
Jangrnen, Chang (logether the River Ports?), including all deadendds ard any cther dissribuations o ather monies
payable to a related company or any of its subsidiary companles in its capacity as 2 shareholger of the relevant
ho'ding company of the Rver Poris arlsing from the peofits attributabée to the business of the Rever Ports and all
sale or disposal proceeds derived from such businesses, axsels, rights andfor liabiiitles constituting anmy part of the
husiness of the River Porms as agreed with a related company and any ofits subsichary companies. The mosement
s due to change o fair value

Deferred tax
Group 1024 2023
HKS'000 HES'D00
Deferred tax assets (37,073) (14,630
Deferred tas labities £083,600 E410678
MNut dalerrad tax lablites B046,527 8,395,588
175
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1B Deferred tax {Continued)

The movements in celerred ax (asselsiliabilves during the year are as follows:

Fairvalug  Withhelding

Oooooooooooobooooooad

Accelerated  adjustments tax on Other
Unused tax depreciation  arising from  unremitted temporary
losses allowances  acquisitions earnings  differences Tatal
HESD00 HESDE) HES000 HES'000 HES000 HKS D00
2034
At 1 januamy 2024 {32,558y 485513 7556320 366485 {19,777 B.395.923
Ta ehaegedicredited)
T Ingoemse SLAneman 24050 0315 (334471 [16,355) {1,525) (340 500
Other (emiparany
diffararces [ 4 - - 131 145
AL Decomibaer 2024 W 455211 1,261 845 250,130 (30171} 3.046,527
2023
A January 2073 (5, 738) 4q7a717 1,938 508 453267 {5,630) SEFEATA
Tax credited 1o income
statement {26,820y (12467} (342.278) (B4, 783 {1, 7483 [ATO0E5)
Cither Lesmparany
differerces 3 - - {14, 338) (12390
A 31 December 2023 {32.558) 435513 7596320 366485 [N B,395.988
Modes:
@ The deferred tax assets and oblies are offset when there Is a legaly enfarceable right to set off ana
when the deferred (axes redate (o the same fiscal authoriy
by Delerred tax assets are recognised for tax kosses carrdied forward to the estent that realisation of the
redated tax benefit thraugh the fumure taxable profit is probache, The Group has unrecognised max lnsses
of HES127.075000 & 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023 HK295,616,000) ko carry lovward agalnst
future taxable income. OF these, HK$96489,000 can be carried forward indefinitely (31 December 2023
HES61,806,000). The remaining HE$30,590,000 (31 December 2023 HK$34,210,000) expires in the
fallowing years:
2024 2023
HEKS'000 HES'000
I the firsy year 8,960 6,253
In the second year 447 8,968
I the thisd year 3,728 11
Irv i fourth year 15,104 3833
Ini the fiftn year 2351 15,108
30,590 34,270
€ Deferred 1ax Eabilities are caloulated r full on temporary differeaces usder the Eabilities method using
the tax rate of the countries In which the Group operated. The tempaorary differences mainy nclude
sccelerated depreciation allowances, lair value adjustments arising from acquisitions, withholding tases
arizing from uneemitted earnings snd other trning differences babween accounting and Laxation rules on
Incame o cxpenGe FECagritian
i Deferred tax assets and llabllities are expected to be recovered or settled mostly after more than twehe
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Group 2024 2023
HES'000 HES'D00

Cash and cash egunalents
Cash at bank and on hand 14852412 1,211,416
Short-term bank depoasits 6,185,721 5973448
Cash and band balances H.138,133 5,194,864
Trust 2024 2023
HES'000 HES' D00

Cash and cash eguhalents
Cash at bank and on hand 1,679 2818

Caszh and bank Galances are denominated in the lolowing carrencies:
Group 2024 2023
PEFI:EI'I-HF NNEH‘“;E_

Heng Kong dollar 34% 45%
Renminbi 20%% T4
Linied Suates dofar A6% 41%
100% 100%
Trust 2024 2023
Percentage  Percentage
Hong Kong daollar 150 1505
Uriited States dokar LY 2%
Singapore dollar 76% 73%
100 100%

Thie carrying amounts of cash and bank balances aparodimate their fair walues, The maximum exposure W oredit
risk i the carrying amaunes of the cash and bank palances
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HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS TRLIST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20  Trade and other receivables

Group 2024 2023
HES 00D HES' 000
Trade receianies 2028,726 096,751
| #5E! hoss allowance provision (Mote ) (85,073) [&7,655)
1,933,653 2,045,002
Other recevables and prepayments 355473 342457
Amounts due from assocated companies (Mote a) 2268 523
Amaunts due from joint ventures (Note a) 120517 138,615
Loan (o an associated compary (Note b) 243,400 490,500

3364311 3021981

Trust 2024 2023
HKS'000 HES'D00

Dnher recesvables and prepayments 2,180 1037
Amceants due fram subsidiany companies (Nate ) 457 390
2632 1427

Trade and other recefvables are denominated in the followang currencies:

Group 2024 2023
Percentage  Percentage

FHeeng Kong doliar &30 At

Renminbi £00% Al

Lindted S1ates dolas Q% B

100% 100%

Trust 2024 2023

Percentage  Percentage

Singapore dollar 100% T00%

Thie Carmydng amounts of these assets approxmate ther fair values,
Motes

()  The smounts due from associated companies and jont venlures of the Group: and amounts dus from
subsidiary companies of tne Trust are unsecured, intevest free and have no fxed terms of repayment

bl As at 31 December 2024, the loan of RMB765000,000 (approximate to HE$E10,900,000) and
RAkIB1 25,000,000 (approximate to HKS$132 500,000) to an associated fompany IS5 Unsecured, interest
breating at & fioed rate of 205 and 2.3% per anfuem, respectively and repayable in one year, As af 31
December 2003, the loan of RMBAS0.000.000 approximate to HES400,500,000) to an assaciaed company
Is unsacured, interest beanng at a flxed rate of 2 3% per annum and repayable In ane year
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ANNLUAL REPORT 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 Trade and other receivables [Continued)

Motes: (Continsed)

il At 31 Decemnber 2024, trade recef/ables of the Group amounting o HKS95,073,000 (2023 HKS47.659,000)
were impaired and provided for. The Group applies the simpliffed aporoach to provide for expecied credit
loases prescriced by HEFRS 9, which permits the use of the Kfelime expected credit ‘oss provision for all
tradie reenahles
Movernents on the loss allowance provision for trade receivables are as follows:

2024 2023
HKS'000 HK$'000
A1 beginming of (he years 47,653 47,339
Addithons 47,357 205
Currancy translation differences 57 111
AL end of the year a5073 47,658
The additions 1o loss allowance provision for trade recevables hawve been included in the Income
staterment
The ather classes wathin trade and oiber receivabies do not contain impaired assets
The masimum expasure to oredit risk at the repartng dat2 s the canmying value of each class of recelvshles
mentoned above.
21 Trade and ather payables
Group 2024 2023
HKS'000 HE$' D00

Trade payables, alher payables and accruals 5850680 018,067

Lowers Irom ron-contralling immereses (Note a) 104,556 106,656

L=as2 liabilities 13,025 10,188

Amounts dus to related companies (Note b) 34312 101,159

Arnesants due (o sssockated cormpnies (Note k) 5,951 2898

Amaunts due [0 joing veniures (Mate o) 47,434 36,966

6055962 6775962

Trust 2024 2023

HKS'000 HES'000
Trade Falf.'lll:lh"ﬁ. ather paiables and accruals 7,208 1,368
Amounts dus o
- a related compary [Note b 18,65% 17612
- subsidiary companias (Note &) 13,074 B,60E
30,031 3LE4E
179
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HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS TRLIST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21 Trade and other payables (Continued)

Trade and other payabées are denominated in the folowing currencies:

Group 2024 2023
Percentage  Percentage

Hoeng Kong diollar 67 [

Ranminbi 32% 3%

Urmed S5aces doilar 1% 2%

1005 100

Trust 2024 2023
Per{:rﬁta{z Permn:taE_

Heng Kong doliar 3% 1%

Lirived Sgates dollar 2E0 EGH

Singapore dollas 9% 3%

100% 100

At 31 December 2024, the carrying amounts of trade and other payables of the Group and of the Trust
approxmate their falr values.

Metes:

{a@  The lsans from nor-cantraliing imerests of the Group are unsecured, interest free except for the amount
of RMBT0000.000, approzimate o HESTE 200,000 (2023 RMBT0.000,000, approximate 1o HEKST6.300,000)
which bears interest at fued rate of 2.0% per annum and repayable in one year,

{41 Amounis due 1o related companies, assodiated companies and joint ventures of the Groep; and amounts

dise i 5 related company and subsidiary compamizs of the Trus: are unsecured, Interest free and have no
freed terms of repayment

22  Bank and other debts

Current  Non-current

Group portion partian Taotal
HES000 HKS'000 HES'000
Unsecured bank loans 3900, 000 12,555,000 16,455,000
Lmans fram related companias 043,400 - L3400
Guaranteed notes - TEO0000 TE00,000
Totsl princkpal amount of bank and other debts 4,843,400 20,355,000 25,198,400
Unamoetised loan facility fees and discoums related 1o debts {1.014) {62,977) [6E,991)
Ar 31 December 2024 &.847 386 20,287,023 25120409
Unsecured bark lpans 390,000 13,155,000 13545000
Loans from related compani=s 450,500 - 460,500
CREMMILAS TGRS Asoa0mn 7800000 1100000
Totad principal amount of bank and otner detis 4,760,500 20,955,000 25,735,500
Unamartisad loan facility fees and discounts related to debts 15,680 (B4,636) (B90.315)
A1 Decermnber 2003 4,774,820 HET03E4 25645184
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ANNLUAL REPORT 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bank and other debts (Continued)

The casrying amounts of Dank loans of the Group approximate cheir fair values as the bank lans bear foating
interest rates and are repeiced wihin one monih at the prevalling market imterest rates, The bank loans will be
fully repayable from March 2025 to October 2029 {2023 repayable fram March 2024 to February 2028}

Ab 31 December 2024, loans fram related companées of AMBTES000,000, spproxemate 1o HKE810.9000000, and
RAMET 25 000,000, approximate 1o HES132,500,000, bear a fxed interest rate of 2.00% and 2.30% per annum,
respectively and repayable from February 2005 0 December 2025, At 31 December 2023, loans from related
companies of RMBAS0000,000, aoprocomate to HESAS0500.000, bear & fieed interest rate of 2.30% per anmum
and regayabie frgm November 2024 to Decamber 2024,

In Movember 2019, the Group Issued a 5-year US$500 million 2 2875% guaranteed note due 2024 and the nore
was fully redesmed during the year ended 31 December 2024

In March and September 2021, the Gfoup issued a Syear LISSS00 million 2.00% guaranteed nate due 2026 and a
Seyear USS500 millon 1.50% guaranteed note due 2026, respectively,

The effective Interest rate of the Group's bank and other debis 3 31 December 2024 & 3.3% per annwm (2023
3.59% pear ansum).

Bark and cther debis are desgminated in the loknwing currencies:

Group 2024 2023
Percentage  Percentage
Hung Kiong diollar 505 Ji
Rerminbi A% 2%
Ursited States doflar A5% 62%
1005 100
Pension azsets
Group 2024 2023
HES'000 HE$'000

Defined benefit plans
Pension assets 2ThATS 131,938

The Group cperates & number of defined benelit and delined comribution plans, the assets of which are held
independent’y of the Groug's assets In rustee administered funds

Defined benefit plans

The Group's defined benefit plans in Hong Kong are a cantributory final salary pension plan and a non-
comtributory guaranteed raturn defined contribution plan. The Group’s plans were valued by Towers Watson Hong
Komg Limited, qualified sctuaries at 31 December 2024 and 31 Decembser 2023 using the projected unit credit
miethod to account for the pension ACCOUMINE Costs in accordance with HKAS 19 (2011) ‘Employas Benefis”,

The pringipal actuarial assumptions used for accounting purposes are as Toliows:

2024 2023
Percentage  Percentage
Discount raga 3.00% 3.40-3.50%
Future salary increases 3.505% 3.50%
Interest cradted on plan acocounts 5.00-6.00% 5. 005005
18
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HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS TRLIST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i | Pension assets [Continued)
{a) Defined benefit plans (Continued)

The amounts recogrised n the consolidated statement of financial position are determined as fol'ows:

2024 2023

HKS'000 HES'000

Fair value of plan assets VA7 062 1261470
Present value of defined henedic obligations (1,100,587) 1,129,473
Met defined benslit assels 2TBA7E 131,838

The mdnements i the present value af the defined benefit assets/fliabilities) and its components are as fal ows.

Defined Fairvalue Net defined

benefits of plan benefit
obligations ASEELs as5ELs
HES Q00 HKS000 HES'000
2024
AL T january (1,129,472 1261410 131,938
Met [chargel/credlt to the Income statement
Current serice cost (35, 756) [618) [30,4874)
rierest [Cosyincoms [37.293) 42314 5019
[73,089) 47,694 {31,395)
Met credit/(charge) to other comprehensive income
Remeasurements gamnioss)
Actusrial gainiloss) arising from:
Expecipnos pdjustiment 1,923 1,943
Fimancial assumptions [15271) [‘i':l..??1]
Demographic assumptan 7 - 77
Return an plan agsets excluding interast incomse - 172034 172,094
[13,4.25) 172004 158,669
Other
Contributions pald by the employer - 17,262 17,263
Contribest lons paid by the employes (5,027 5027
Senefits pawd 116,678 [T 16,678])
Net ransfer 3,748 [3,748) -
AL 31 December (1,100,587 1377062 276475
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ANMUAL REPORT 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Pension assets (Continued)

{a) Defined benefit plans (Continued)

Defined Falrvalue  Net defined

benefits af plan benefit
obligations a55ELs assers
HES'000 HEST00 HES' 000
2023
AL T January {1.168514] 1,291,827 123213
Met (chargel/credit to the Income statement
Current service £05 [37.431) (390 37 8e2)
rlEresy (post fndams [47,%39) &7 08 5174
(79,370 46671 (32,699
Met eredit/{charge) to other comprehensive income
Remeasurements gainoss)
Actuarial gaindloss) arising fbram:
Expefignce sdjusiment 1,602 E 1,602
Fimancial assumptions [78,401] [1a8,401)
Demographic assumption 6,540 - G840
Return on plan assets excluding interest income - 28,224 29,224
(5,353 29,224 £3.305
Other
Contributions pald by the employer - 18,059 18,055
Contribations paid by the empopes {5,609 5,609 -
denefits paid 125928 [125.426]
et transfer £553 {4,552) -
Az 31 Decamber [1.129.472) 1267410 131,933
183
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HUTCHISOMN PORT HOLDENGS TRLUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Pension assets (Continued)
{a) Defined benefit plans (Continued)

Fair value af the plan assets is analysed as follows

2024 2023
Percentage _ Percentage

Equity Instrumen(s
Conglomerates and manufacmuring [ 1%
Comstruction and materials 1% =%
Condurmear markets 2% 2%
Energy and utilities Tl 1
Financial instrtutions and units trust 5% b
Heallh and Cafe A A
nsurance 0% 1%
nfarmation technology B 2%
Dakueirs I% 1%
540 E5%

DenT InsIfUments

Goerrimerd [ather than LIS) s 0
Financial instiutions 10% G
U5 Treasury A% A
(Khers 4% )i,
6% 28%
Cash and others 1040 1%
1005 10105

184
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ANNLUAL REPORT 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pension assets (Continued)
Defined benefit plans (Continued)

The debt instruments are analysed by ssuers credit rating as follows:

2024 2023
Percentage  Percentage

AADAAA 1% 100
AaliAAs 4] 3%
Aadias 1% 8%
Aa3iAA- A% b5
AllA= Y 6%
AT T4t T
AJFA- 3% 3%
Eaal/BEa. % 0%
Baal/BB3 4% A%
Cher lower prade 2% 1%
Mo Investment grade 5% 3%

100% 100%

The fair value of the above equity instruments and debt instruments is determined based on guoted market
PeCEs,

Contributions to fund the obligations are based wpon the recommendations of independent qualified actuares
far each of the pension plans of the Graup to fully fund the relevant schemes on an ongoing basis. The realisation
aof the deflch is contingent upon the realisation of the actuarial assumptions made which is dependent upon a
numiser of facars inchiding thie markes perfermance of plan assets, Funding requirements of the major defined
benefit plans af the Group are detaled below.

The Group operates two prinopal pension plans in Hong Kong. One plan, which has been closed (o new entrants
sipce 1994, provides pengion benefits based on the greater of the aggregate of the employee and omployer
vested conitributions plus a minimum interest thereon of &% per annum, and pension benelits derved oy 2
formula based on the final salary and years of service, An Independent ectuarial valuation, undertaxen for funding
purposes under the provision of Hong Eong's Cocupatonal Retirement Schemes Ordinance (ORS0, at 30 june
2024 reposted a funding level of 169% of the accrued actuarial llabives on an ongolng basis. The valuatian used
the amained age valuation methad and the main assumprons In the valuation are an investment regsm of 5% per
annien, salary increases of 3.5% per annum and Interest credied to balances ol 6% per annum, The valuation was
prepared by Tian Keat Aun - Director, Retirememnt Hong Kong {a Fellow af The Instituge and Faculty of Actuaries),
and Michaal Lee - Consultant, Retirement Hong Kong of Towers Watson Hong Kong Limited. The secard plan
provides Benefits equal to e amployer vested contrbutions plus & minimum (nterest therean of 5% per
nnuen. As 41 31 December 2024, wissted benelits under this plan are fully fursded in accordance wih the DRSO
funding requirements. Ouring the year ended 31 December 124, forfeited contributions totalling HEST??,003K)
12023 H=$ 564 000) were used to reduce the level of confributions of the year ended 31 December 2024 and no
forfelted contribution was available at 37 Decemnber 2024 [(2023: nlf} to reduce future year's contributions.
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HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23 Pension assets (Continued)
{a) Defined benefit plans (Continued)

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the significant prncipal assumptions is

Impact en defined benefit obligation

Change in Increase in Decrease in

assumption assumption assumption
Discount rate 0,250 Decrease oy 1.0% Irecrease by 1.0%
Salary increase 0 25% Incraase by 001 Cecrease oy 0.1%

The abowe sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while halding all other assumptions
constanl Im practice. this = unlkely to accur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When
calculating the sersitivity of the defined benedfit oblgation o sgreficant actuarkal assumptions, the same method
{present vahee of the delined beneflc abligarion caculated with the projected wnit credit method at the end of the
reporing pericd) has been appled as when calculating the pension dability recognised within the statement of
financial position. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did nat change
cormpaeed 10 preaous year,

The Group expects to make contributions of HES 17778000 (2023 HK$TE.907,000) 1o the defined benefit plans
during the next year.

The weghted sverage duration of the defined benafit abligation (s 3.9 years as at 31 December 2024 [2023: 42
YEME)

{b}  Defined contribution plans
The Group's cost in respect of defined contribuwtion plans for the year amounted to HK3T?, 003,000 (2023,
HES T, 198, 00G)

24 Assets classified as held for sale
On 37 July 2024, YICT and Shenzhen Pingyan Multimodal Company Limiied [#ML7, the subsidiaries of HPH Trust
entered Ino expropriation and compensation agreements with the relevant focal authority under the Yantan
District Pecple's Government of Shenzhen of the PRC. m relation lo a compuisory expropriation af 10 plots of
land ewned by ¥ICT and Phil, and certain immovable assets amached 1o such land. The 10 plats of land and
certain immovable assets aached (o such land belong to the segment of “Maindand Ching” in note 4(0). The cash
consideration ol the expropriation amourms o HKS399 millllen, subject 1o the futfillmen: of cenain conditans

The relevant assets were therafore dassified as assats held for sake at their carrying amaunts

25 Other non-current liabilities

Group 2024 2023
HKS'000 HES'000

Lease fiabilitles 457 6473
Dthers §7,30% 100,758
85970 107237
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ANNLUAL REPORT 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Units in issue
Group and Trust Mumber of
umiks HES'000

ALY January 2023, 31 Decemnber 2023 and 31 Decemnber 2024 8.711,101,022 B8.553,830
Al issued wnits are fully paid and rank parl passu im all respacts,
Investment in a subsidiary company
Trust 2024 2023

HEKS'000 HES'000
Isestment cost 10,000 10,000
Capital contribution 434806415 44632724
Liess: accurmnulated impairment [24,2712)057) [24,212057)

19,284,364 40430673

Pursuant to an investment agreamant batween HPH Trust and a wholy-owned subsidiary, HPHT Limited, dated 4
Aurgiesl 2071, HPH Trust made capital contributions of HKS6T, 280,000,000 to HPHT Limited (Captal Contribution”)
through capitalising the amounts due from the subsidiary. HPH Trust has no right 1o reguire HPHT Limited o
return any Capital Contribytion, HPHT Limited may return to HPH Trust any Capital Comtributan at any time in
wisdle or in part Accordingly, the Capital Contribution is accounted for as investment in 3 subsidiary company.

Detalls of subsidiary compandes ol the Group are disckased in Nowe 32

Notes to consolidated statement of cash flows

Recancliation of aperating profit to cash generated from operations is as fallows:

2024 2023
HES'000 HE$'000
Operating prafit 4,378,710 2320123
Depreclation and amortsation 2824363 2E94.820
Met (gainyioss on dispodal of frued assets 4,124) 5053
Impaimment of trade and other recevables 47,357 209
Dividend income (12,787 (223200
IPTBrEst incoma [3:44,175) [356,223)
Operating prafit before working capital changes 0B8R, 740 LB81,668
Diecrease iry insenlories 5128 3,653
Decreasedincrease) in trade and other receivables a7.750 [160,012)
Mavement in balances with associated companies and joing ventures 20,872 {5.4838)
(DeCreaseifincrease |0 tradi and othes payablies [250,558) 30,381
Decreéase in pension assets 14,132 14,640
Cash generated fram ocerations 6,736,064 E.045,892
187
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HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS TRLIST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28  Motes to consolidated statement of cash flows {Continued)
{b)  Reconclliation of Habilities arising from financing activities is as follows:
Bank Interest rate
and other Bank swap
Dividend lpans  and other cantracts held
payable repayable loans to hedge
o nen- net  repayable against fair
controlling  exceeding more than  Guaranteed value risks of Lease
Interests 1 year 1 year nates bank loans  llabdlities Tatal
HES'000 HKS 00 HES'004 HES000 HES000 HES'000 HE$'000
Az | anuary 2024 - BEOIME 13103003 11,661,105 (193.583) 16565  J5467 885
Cash flgwass (Mot {3.215147 9,300 35000 13.900000) WI3IN {76017
Fareign axcharge
edjustments na.24m (26400 - 5547
Transfer Detasen
caténoeies 1EHAEE (3 B9 SEG) - -
Disidends to naik
controling mberests 17343594 - - - - 123438
Incraase o lease
liakitiies - - 17.535 17539
Crhir man-cash
McvEments - 124 18313 (R 166312 743 205360
A 31 Degember 024 ABLI380 12506040 TIE09R {27451 17600 25119358
Nede: The tolal cash outfiow for the leases in 2024 was HK$43,635.000.
Bank Interest rate
and other Bank swap
Diwidend loans  and other contracts hefkd
payable repayable loans o hedge
to non- mot  repayable against falr
controlling  exceeding  more than  Guaranteed value risks of Lease
Interasts 1 year 1 year nates bank laans liabilities Total
HES'D00 HKS'000 HKS'000 HES000 HES T HES D00 HEFD00
& 1 anuany 093 506765 10,330,389 11,641,543 [ALLIET 29065 26756444
Canh Nowes ot (2924337} (4579500) 3,145,000 - N284) @3N
Fareign exchange
adjustmens [15481) - - - - (15451}
Trarsier betwesn
categories - 3[eATE {38987 - - b
Diickends ta nan
contoling interess. 2935828 - - - - AeHBER
Decreaze infease
labiiiies - (1.353) [1553)
Crhar man-Lash
MCETIENLS - 23 18,210 13562 118224 247 159184
Az 37 Dacarnber 2023 - E303TE 13103703 11,661,105 1193.963] 16565 25467885
Nod#: Thie tatal cash outliow for the leases in 2033 was HK$45,195 000,
188
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ANMUAL REPORT 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| Commitments

[£1] The Growp’s Capial Commitments are as Tolows.

2024 2023
HKS'000 HES'000

Froed assets and projects under development
Conmtractad but pol provided lor 12604 A4.867

(6] The Group's share of capual commitments of the point veniures 5 as follows:

2024 2023
HEKS'000 HE$'000
Contractzd but not provided for 2892099 2096,355

(] The Group leases various offices premizes and poet facilities under non-canceilable leages axpiring within five
months to ten months (2023: six months to fowrteen menthsl. The leases have vandng terms, escalation clauses
and renewal rights, On renewal, the terms of the leases are renegotiated.

The futwre minimum lease payments for leases not recognised in tha financial statements are as olows

2024 2023

HKS'000 HES'000

Withinone year 176 1974
Batween one and two years - 33
176 2013

id] At 31 December 2024, the Group leased certain office premises and port Tacilities to third parties under non
cancellable operating leases. Agaregate minmum lease recetables are as follows:

2024 2023
HEKS'000 HES'000
Within one year 16,028 25,758
Berween one and two years 1,302 12,416
Batween tao and three years 165
17,330 45,335
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30  Related parties transactions
Si.EI'II“CBI'l[ transactions Detwean the Group and related parties during the year that ase carried out in the normal
course of busness are disclosed below. Outstanding balances with associsled companées, joint veniures and
Eroup companies are disclosed in Motes 15 16, 20 and 21

i Irvzome from and experses to related parties

2024 2023
HKS'000 HE$'000
Incaome:
Container kandiing fees from joint ventures and related
COMPAnes (Note a) BART 11,545
Management, serace arsd support fee from related
companies (Mote o) 47132 &dh3g
Trarsportation management senvices fee from related
COMPanies (Mo c) BZ609 15,729
interest income from a joint veniure and an associated
company (Mote d) 37,184 20,769
Expensas
Containes namdling charges to joint ventures, an assaciated
compary and a relaled company [Note a) 10372 5,580
frapsportation management senace charges 1o an associated
company and related companies (Note ) 19462 17227
Leate rertals on premizes and port faciites to a joint venture, an
assocated company and related companses [Nate &) 16,032 16,552
Trustee-Manager management fees (Nose fi
- Basa fae 26,646 26431
Dentlopment fee G477 13445
Global support services Tees (o a related campany (Note g) 159,878 156,587
Imlermation technology (177} supzort and malntenance service fees o
= & joint vanture (Mot b} - 28,166
an associaed company (Moge hj 31,960 -
- related companies [Note h) 24129 24,656
Irflit st expenisas (0 rélaled companias (Note i 19,226 815
Mates:

[al Contaimer handlng fees from jaint ventures and related companies were charged at terms pursuant
1o thee releiant agreements.

ity Management, service and suppon fee from related companies were charged at terms mutially
agreed

[14] Revenue from related companies lor the provision of transpartation manzsgement sarvices was
charged o prices and terms mutually agreed.

{d) Interest income from the loans prowded to a pont venture and an associated company was chasged
im accardance with the terms disclosed in Mote 15 and Mote 20(b).

{#)  Comainer handing charges, ransportation mMandgement senice charpes and lease rentals o jont
venitures, assoclated comoanies and related compantes were charged 3 terms pursuant to relsvant
EEI'EE‘ITIE'I’IIS-
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30  Related parties transactions (Continued)

m

{H]

Incame from and expenses o relaned parties (Continued)
Motes: {Continued)
i The Trusiee Manager's management fees were charged in accordance with the Trust Deed,

The base fee was charged at a fixed fee of US$2,500,000 (equivalent to HKS19.500.000) per annum
which Is subject to increase each year from 2012 by such percentage representing the perceniage
imcrease in the Hong Kong Composite Consurmer Price index. The base fee Tor the year ended 31
Decamber 2024 iz payable in casn. As the December 2024 Fgure for the Honp Kong Camposite
Consumer Price Index Is vt 1o be published a5 at the date of preparation of these fimancial
stalements, the adjustment to the base fee, if required, will be accounted for in the subsequent
financial year.

Deveropment fee relates 1o the development praject by YEPICT, @ joimt venture of HPH Trust, was
charged i accoedance with the Trust Deed which states that the development fog is payakle in
arrears for every six months after the commencement of the development praject in respect of
project costs incwrred over the grevious sc-month period. Pursuant to the Trust Deed,

(1) where the wofa! projec costs incusred i thie develpment praject 5 ess than LSS50 millian,
the Trustee-Manager s entitled to recelee a fee of 2 5% of the total project costs ncurred
{pro-raed (o HPH Trust's 39.73% effective Inferest m the subject development projecty and

[2)  where the tatal project costs incurred in [he deveiopment project is USSS00 milion or
mare; the Trustee-Manager is entitled 10 receive a fee of US$12.5 milion plus 1.5% of the
total project cosis incurred which exceeds US$500 milion (pro-rated to HPH Trusts 39.73%
effactive interest in the subject development project).

Total project costs incurmed since commencement of the project wp 10 21 December 2024 were
awer LIESHI0 milion, Development fees were caltulated based on the 2.5% for the prog@ct costs
Imcurred reached and wathin the US$500 millon threshold and 1.5% for the project costs incurred
ower LISE500 million threshald for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 {pro-rated to HPH
Trusts 39.73% effective interest in the subject develoginent propect)

@  Global support servces fees in respect of administration senices, and licence for cerain intellacrual
property rights wers charged at prices and terms mutually agreed.

) I suppor and mantenance services fees in respect of the support and maintenance of IT systems
e @ joint venture. an assoclated company and related companies were charged at prices and terms
mutualy agreed

1 Intares: expar<es for this lbans dus to the related companias were charged in accordance with the
werm diclosed in Note 22,

Joint Operating Alllance of the Kwail Tsing container terminals

Pursuant 1o the Hong Kong Seapoct |oint Operating Alliance Ageeermnent entgied inlo by Honghong
Internatianal Terminads Limiged, COSCO-HIT Terminals (Hong Kong) Limited, Asla Contalner Terminals
Limited and Modern Terminals Limited, with effect from 1 April 2015, the partles colleborate with each
other for the efficent managemant and operation of the 23 berths across Termingls 7, 2, 4, 5 6, 7, 8 and
4 {rogether the Combined Terminal Facillies? in Kwal Teng. The revenue and casts from the managemeni
and aperaton of the faciites of the Combned Terminal Facilities are shared among (he parties at a
pre-agreed ratio,

"
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30  Related parties transactions (Continued)
(i) Key managemant compensation
Rey management of the Group Includes managng derectars and key management of the deep-water

coniainer ports of the Group. The compensation paid or payable to key management for employee
services is shown below,

2024 2023
HHS'000 HES'000
Salaries and employes benafits #3857 22320

31 Financial risk and capital management
{a]  Cash management and funding

Thie majed Erancial instruments of the Grawp inckede ligud funds, estrments, trade and ather recevables. trade
and ather payatles and borrowings, Detadls of these fingnclal instruments are disciosed in the respective notes
to thee fimamclal statements, The risk management programme of the Growp is designed (o minimise the inancial
risks of the Group. These risks Indude credit risk, Interest rate risk foreign currency risk and liguidicy risk.

The Group generally obtains |long-term financing to meat funding requirements. Management of the Graup
regutarly and closely monitors iis overall net debt pesitton and reviews 15 funding cosis and maturity profile io
facitate refinancing

{b)  Capital management

The Group's sirategy imvabes adoptng Jrd maintaining an aporoprate mix of datg and squety 10 ensure aptimal
returns (o unitholders, white maintaining sufficient flswdbility to implement growth strategies.

The Geoup may consider diversifying its sources of debt fimancing by accessing the debt capatal marckets through
the issuance of bonds to optmise the debt maturity profile and to make adjustments to the caoital structure in
light of changes in economic conditions,

The Group has camplied with all externally imposed capital requirements which include a leverage ratio

A 31 December 2004, toval equty amounited to HKSA2 000,835,000 (2023: HK$43,355 0420000, and consoldated
net debt, which represents cash less tank and other debts, of the Group was HE$17,060,267,000 (2023
HE$1 TS0 6360000

{c]  Credit exposure

The Group's holdings of cash and cash equivalents, Interest rate swaps contracts with financiat Instiutions expose
the Growp to counterparty oreds risk. The Group cantrols its cred risk 10 non-performance by its counterparties
thraugh regular review and manitaring af their credit ratings.

The recenvables rom customers and olher counterparties also expose (he Group to credit risk. The Group
conitrols its credit risk by assessing the credit quality of the customer, faking Into accouns (5 financial position, past
experience and otner factors. Individusl rsk limits are set based o imternal ar esternal ratings 'n accordance with
limits set by the management. The ulilisation of credit fimits is reguarly monitored.

The Group appkes the HEFRS 9 simpifisd approach 1o measuring the ECL which uses a ifetime ECL for all trade
recetvables. To measure the ECL, trade recevables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characeristics
and the days past due.

The ECL an trade recenables (s sither caiculited using & provision matri< whers & provisan rae apples
based on 15 historical obsended default rates or expedted default probabdlity and the koss rate, as adiusted by

lonward-fookeng information, On that basis, ECL of HE$95,073,000 (2023, HK$47,659,000) was recognised as at
31 Decernber 2024,
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31 Fipancial risk and capital management (Continued)

{d} Interest rate exposure
The Group’s maln interest risk exposures relate to cash and cash equivaents, kaans from non-controlling interests.
bank and other debts. The Group manages its interest rate exposure with a focus an reducing the Group’s overall
et of debt and exposure o changes in inlerest rales,

The impadct of a hypothetical & basls points increase in market interest rate at the end af the reponting period
world decrsase the Group's profit and unithciders’ equity by HE32- 208,000 {2023; HKS1,476.000)

Thee Group entered im0 Cross CURMBncy iNTerast rate swap contracts and interest rate Saap contracts to achisve an
appropeiate mix of fixed and floating rate exposure consistent with the Group's policy, where appropriate

The effects of the interest rate swap contracts on the Group's financial position and performance are a5 foflows

2024 2023
HES'D00 HES000
Carrying amount assets 27651 193963
Motional amount (Mate) 3,900,000 3,900,000
Maturity date Marth 2025 March 2025
Hedge ratic mn 1
Cnange In fair value of outsianding hedging Instruments since 1 January [16e312) (131.071)
Change Invaiue of hedged itom used to determing hedge affectivensss 1bG312 13101
Py average in[erest rae 1.18% 1.168%
Recene gverage Interest rate a0s% 2.99%

Mote:

The contractual notonal amount of nterest rate swaps held for hedging which is based on Secured Cwermight
Financeng Rate ("SOFRT) is HEL3,900,000,000 (2023 HKS3,.900,000,000, based on Secured Ouvernight Finangang
Rate (HOFRTY.

(8]  Foreign currency exposure

For oyerseas subsidinries, assocated companies end jont ventures, which oonsisy af non Horg Kong dodlar assets,
the Group generally monitors the development of the Group's cash flows and debt market and, when approgpriate,
wiuld expect 1o refinance these businesses with local currency borrowings.

Currency risk a5 defined by HEFRS 7 arlses an financial instruments dencménated &0 a currency that = not the
functianal currency and being of a monetary nature except for the curency risk between United States dobiar
and Hong Kong dallar given the twa Currencies are under the linked exchange rate system. Differences resulfting
fram the wanslation of financlal statements of overseas subsidiaries into the Groug's presentation currency are
therefgre nat taoen into consideration for the purpase af the sensitiity aralysis for currency risk.

The imipact of a hypothetical 5% weakening of the HE dollar against all exchange rates at the end of the reponing
period, with all other vanables held constant, on the Group's prafit for the year 15 set out as below,

Hypothetical (decrease)/
increase in profit

2024 23

HEF'000 HES'000

Renminbi 245343 [12.740)
Singapore dollas (116 [210)
245227 [1.2,950
193
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n Financial risk and capital management (Continued)
N Liguidity exposure
The following tables detall the remaning contraciual maturities at the end of the reporting pericd of the Group's

and the Trusts financial liabllties, which are based on contraciual undiscounted principal cash flows and the
parligst date on which the Greup and the Trust can be requered (o pay:

Group Contractual maturities
Total Batween
Carrylng wndiscounted Within 1to5s After
amounts cash flows 1 year years 5 years
HKS'000 HHKE'000 HES'000 HHS'00D HES' 000
2024
Trade and ather payables 6055962 G.Ose027 0,056,027 -
Baris ard ather dekts 25,729,406 25,198,400 4 B23400 A0.355,000
Citer non-currerd liabilities 451 4706 47068

311585942 31,250,133 10,809,427 20,350,706 -

2023

Trade and other payables 6,275,862 6276002 6276002 - -
Banz and sther debts 25.645,184 25,735.500 A4, TE0S00 205955000

iner non=currend liahilities bag b,508 b,508

31,927,625 12078010 11.056,502 20.561.508

Agguming the aflect of interest rates with réspect 1o variable rate financial Babllities remaining constant and
no change in aggregate principal amount of financal Fabiites atter than repayment #t Scheduled maturity as
reflected inthe table, the Group has interest accruing and payable on certain of these labilities which 15 estimated
to be HX¥$E31.783,000 (2023, HK$351,529000) in “witmin 1 year® maturity band and HKS$1,663,131,000 (2023
HE$ 1,792, 180,0001 in "petween ¥ b0 5 years” maturity band. The table above exchedes such informatan

Trust Contractual maturities
Tatal
Carrying undiscounted Within Between
amounts cash faws 1year 1to5years
HES'000 HKS000 HES'B00 HESDH0
2024
Trade and arhar payables Ee TR O3 9,031
2023
Trade and other payables i1 bdb 11 Hdh 11,646

194
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial risk and capital management (Continued)

Financial instruments by category

The following table shows the classification category and carmyng amouwnt as at 37 December 2024 and
31 Decernber 2023 under HKFRS 3 far the Growp’s financial assets and financia’ liabilties:

MNote
Financial assets
Listed equity security 17
River Parts Econamic Banefits 17
Interest rate saans
Cash and cash eguivalents 9
Trade ard other recehableg 20
Financial llabilities
Bank and other debts 22
Trade and ather payables Fx|
Lease labilities 21,25

Representing ;

Financial assets measured at
=¥ ual|

Amoeetined cost

Fair value-hedges

Financial lHabilities measured at
Amortised cost

Classification

POl
ualal
Far valug-hedges
Amartised cost
Arnarised cost

Armomised cost
Amantised cost
Amnoriesed cost

241/317

2024 2023
HES'000 HKS'000
31.050 0,039
219873 243 B57
27651 193963
B13R133 B 134864
3175088 2830013
11,591,795 171,491,736
25129409 25645184
6,042933 6265776
1 ?I'ﬂﬂ Iij,ﬁ!'u_';
31188942 31,927,625
250923 272836
11.313.21 11.024.877
27651 193,963
31.189.942 31927625
195
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 Financial risk and capital management (Continued)

{h}  Fair value estimation
The table below analyses recurfing fair value measurements for finandal assetsifliabdities). These fair value
measuraments e calepofised ino different levels in the fair valee hisrarchy based on the Inouts to valuation
techrigues used, The different lewls are delined as follows:
Lewal 10 Quoted prices (unadjusted] in active markets for 'dentical assets or liabilities;

Lewed 2: Inputs cther than quoted prices inchded within Level 1 that are cbservable for the assets or kabililies,
ather directly (e, a5 prices) or indirectly [Le. derived from prices) and

Lewel 3: Inputs for the asseis or labilites that are not based on chservable market dasa {.e. unobservable spus)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Note HHS'000 HHS' D00 HHS'000 HES000
At 31 December 2004
Listed equily secu ity 17 3,050 - - 31,050
River Ports Economic Benefits 17 - - 219873 219873
Cash flow hedpes =
niErest rae Swaps - J1ER - 2TES1
31,060 7651 219873 2TE.574
Ar 31 Decembar 2003
Listed pquity security 17 20,039 - 300039
River Ports Economic Benefits 17 - 242 BST 242857
Cash flow hedges
nterest rate swaps - 1893863 - 153,963
20,0359 193,963 242857 456 B50

The falr value of the oross currency interest rate swaps and interest rate swags included in leval 2 categary above
are estmated using the present value of the estimated future cash flows based on obssrvatile yisld curves. The
fair value of financial instruments that ane ol traded in active market (level 3) §s determined by dscounted cash
ficwy anadysis with reference ta mputs such as dividend stream. The sgnificart unabserable inputs far the Level
3 valuation are average dividend growth rate of 11% (2023 5%] and discoumt rate of 11% (2023: 11%). The higher
the average dividend growih rate or the lower the discoent rate, the higher the far value of Level 3 vatuation,

[hwring the years ended 31 December 2044 and 2023, there ware no transfers batween the Level 1, Level 2 and
Lewel 3 fair vaiue measurements.

At 31 December 2024, the fair value of bank and other debts (Mote 22) was HK$24, 798 5 mifkon (31 December
202% HK$25003.0 milkon) The carrying amounts of the remaining financial assets and financial liabilities.
aporocmate thair fair values,
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32 List of subsidiary companies of the Group
{a)  Detalls of principal subsidiary companies of the Group at 31 December 2024 and 2023 are as follows:
Particulars af
Mace of Issued share i Eﬁecﬂ::'d
incorporation’ capital/registered R
Mame astablishmant Principal activities capital 2024 2023
HPHT Limited™ Hang Kong Imvestment holzng HE$ 0000000 1005 100
Glantlield Resources British Yirgin Islands  Investment holding 2 ordinary shares of 100% T00%
Limifad® LIS$T wach
HIT ingstments Limied™  Britsh Virgn slands  Irvestment higlding 201 cedinary "A" 1006 100%
shares of LIS§1
gach®
B0D non-voting
preferred "B shares
of Uss1 each
Peafl Spirit Limiged " British Virgin lslands  Imvestment holging 2 ardinary shares of 100%: 00
LIS ety
Hongkong Irtemational Hong Kong Development and HK$3 500,000,020 100% 100%
Terminals Limited™ operation of containes
terminaty
Yantian International Chira Development and HES2 400,000,000 AT S641%
Contanar Terminsks operation of container
LiTiited™ tEfrrinais
Yantan Intennational China Pevelopment and HE$6,05%5 960,000 B168%  S5164%
Comaner Terminaks operation of containgr
(Phase Il Limiged™ terminats
shenzhen Pingyan China Pronsion of vidious RMBET 50000000 S1b4%  STEA%
Muklmodal Cormpany transportation seréces
Limited™
SherEnhen Yanlian West  China Dinedaprment and RMBZ. 343 300,000 1A% SUEAY
Fort Teominalks operation of contiines
Limited™ terminals
Hitchisoh Ports Yantian  Hong <ong Ittt holding HES 10,000,000 TH45% T4
LirmipeF™
Wattrus Limited!! Britsh Virgin Islangs  Imestment balding A2 A shwares of G4 RAR  DdBREW
U551 each
293 8 shares of
USEt each
Sucoess Enderprises Britigh Virgin slanas  Investment holding 2005 A7 shases of T9.45% 7945
Limited™ LISEY each
B.424 78" shares of
Us%1 each

243/317
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1a)

(L]

198

List of subsidiary companies of the Group [Continued)

Details of principal subsidiary companies of the Group at 31 December 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

[Continued)
Particulars of
Place of issued share i “"““"’h:l :
incorparation/ capital/registered nterest
MName establishment Principal activities capital 2024 2023
Hiutchisoen Poms Hritish Viegen Islands  brvestment hakding 200 grdinary shares 100% 100%
Yantan Investments of U531 each
Limited*
Berrong Limited: British Virgen islands  brvestment holding 10,000 erdinary 100%  100%
shares of US$1
each
Hutchizon Shenghen British Viegen tslands  Prvestrment hoding 1 ardinary share ol 1007 1005
Easy Imvaestments L5$1
Limited

i Aodted by PricewaterhouseCoopers network finms

{11 Mot requined to be audited under the laws of the tountry of ircorparation

3 1 ordinary *A° share was fsued in 2023

W 1 ordinary share was issued In 2023

15 1 ordetaty share was seued foe HCEE 500000000 2023

The Trust has complied with Rules 712 and 715 of the Listing Manwal of the 5GX-5T in relation 1o its auditors,
Material non-controlling interosts

Yamtian Internationa Container Terminals Limited, Yantlan International Contalmer Terminals (Phase 11y Limited,
Shenzhen Yantian West Port Terminals Limited, Wattrus Limited and Success Enterprises Limited are the
subrsidiary comipanies with non-controling interests that are material ta the Group.

Fe1 out Detow 15 the summarised financial information for these subsidiary companies;

Surmmarized staterment of financial position

2024 2023
pER. oo

MOn-CUrTENT 55815 55,365,172 56,327,721
Currant assets 1,558,355 1189450
Total assats 62,523,527 64,117,211
MNon-current liabilives 5,664,752 5838411
Current labiitles 513318 A601,481
Tatal liabiliges 10,798,470 10,538,872
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List of subsidiary companies of the Group (Continued)
Material non-controlling interests (Continued)

Summarised income statement

2024
HES 000
Rnsgriue and other inoome B.E55032
Mat prafit for the year 3.3595.592 2,801,985
Surmmarised staternint of cash flows
2024 2023
HKS'00 HEST00
Met change in cash and cash equivalents 46 14.316,724)
[hidends pald te non-conzralling nterests 2,215,147 2924337

The information abowve 15 the amount before inter-campany eliminations.
Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements set out on pages 146 to 195 were approved by the Board of Directars of the Trustee-

WManager for issue on T Februany 3025,

199
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HPH
19,284,364 100.2
(20,097) 0.1 )
(12,623) 0.1 )
19,251,644 100.0
(20,097) 0.0 )
(6,316,607) (15.0 )
48,337,539 115.0
42,000,835 100.0
HPH HPH HPHT
15 11,700 126
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2024 12 31
19,290.6 353,790
39.0 715
19,251.6 353,074
8,711,101,022
2.87 53
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CDP 10.00
CDP

CDP

CDP
CDP CDP
CDP

HPH
60

HPH
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10,000,000
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38 59 328

23 103

193
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2024 12 31
2024 2023
3 33,892 622 40,435 742
(2,017) @37 (1,701) (31)
(181) ©) (181) (©)
(5,695) (104) (5,959) (109)
(7,893) (145) (7,841) (144)
25,999 477 32,594 598
(©) © ) ()
4 25,996 477 32,588 598
(3,962) (73) (5,299) ©7)
22,034 404 27,289 500
7 28,000 514 30,000 550
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2024 12 31
2024 2023
59 1 244
59 1 244
10 17,748 325 24,566 451
11 18,677 343 17,659 324
178 3
36,603 671 42,225 774
12 6,949 127 5,857 107
13 60 1 185 3
4,049 74 4,795 88
11,058 203 10,837 199
25,545 468 31,388 576
25,604 470 31,632 580
13 62 1
25,604 470 31,570 579
14 100 2 100 2
25,504 468 31,470 577
25,604 470 31,570 579
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2024 2023
25,507 468 48,317 886
769 14 559 10

(©)) © ® ©
(4,908) (90) (7,278) (133)
21,365 392 41,592 763
(28,000) (514) (30,000) (550)
(183) 3 (179) (©)
(28,183) (517) (30,179) (553)
(6,818) (125) 11,413 209
24,566 451 13,153 241
17,748 325 24,566 451
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100 31,470 31,570
22,034 22,034

(28,000) (28,000)

100 25,504 25,604
2 577 579
404 404

(514) (514)

2 468 470
100 34,181 34,281
27,289 27,289

(30,000) (30,000)

100 31,470 31,570
2 627 629
500 500

(550) (550)

2 577 579
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HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS MANAGEMENT PTE. LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Far the year ended 31 December 2024

Note 2024 2023
HKS000  HKS'00D

Revenue and oLher income 3 33,892 40,435
Staff costs (2017 {1,701)
Depreciation {181} (181}
Other pperating expenses {5,695) (5,%59)
Total operating expenses (7.883) (7.841)
Operating profit 25,9949 32,508
Finance costs 5 ()] (&)
Profit before tax 4 25596 32,588
Tax ] (3, 36:2) {5,255)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 22,034 27289
Dhidend 7 28,000 30,000
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ANMUAL REPORT 2004

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A1 31 Decemiber 2024

Note 2024 2023
HES'000 HKS 000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fixed assets 9 - -
Right-of-use assers B 59 2dad
58 2k
Current assets
Cash and cash eguivalents 10 17.748 24,566
Trade and other recevables 1 18,677 17.659
Tax recoverable 178 -
36,603 42 235
Current llabilities
Trade and other payables 12 56,5949 5857
Lease liabilities 13 60 185
Current tax liabilities 4,043 4,795
11,058 10,837
Met current assets 25545 31,388
Total assets less current liabilities 25,604 1,632
Mon-current labllity
Lease labilities 13 - 62
Net assets 25,604 31,570
EQUITY
Share capital 14 100 100
Retained profits 25,504 31,470
Total equity 25,604 31,570
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HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS MANAGEMENT PTE. LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Far the year ended 31 December 2024

Note 2024 2023
HES00D0  HESO00
Operating activities
Met cash from operations 15{a) 25507 48317
Interest recehed TG4 559
Interest and other finance costs pakd 15(b) El] (&)
Tax paid {4, 908) {7.278)
Net cash from operating activities 21,365 41,582
Financing activities
Dividend paid 7 {28,000} (30,000
Principal elements of lease payments 15(b) {183y (179
Cash used in financing activities [28.183) (30,179)
Net changes in cash and cash equivalents (6.E1R) 11,413
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 24,566 13,153
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 10 17,748 24,566
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ANMUAL REPORT 2024

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Far the year ended 31 December 2024

Share Retained
capital profits Total
HES'000 HE$'000 HKES 000
2024
Balance at 1 January 2024 100 3470 31,570
Prafit and taral comprehenshe income for the year 22034 22,034
Transactions with owners, recognised directly in egquity
Dividend {(Mote 7) - (28,000) (28,000)
Balance at 31 December 2024 100 23,504 23,604
2023
Balance at 1 January 2023 oo 34,181 34,261
Profit and total comprehenshve income for the year - 27 289 27289
Transactions with owners, recognised directly in equity
Dividend (Note 7] el (30.000) (30,000
Balance at 31 December 2023 100 31,470 31,570
9
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HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS MANAGEMENT PTE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 General infermation

Hutchison Port Holdings Management Pte. Limited (the “Company™ s a limited liability company incorporated
in the Republic of Singapore on 7 January 2011 under the Companies Act 1967 of Singapore, The Compamy's
Immediate helding company is CK Hutchison Global Investments Limited, its ultimate holding company Is CK
Hutchisen Heldings Limited, which is incorporated in Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company acts as the Trustee-Manager of Hutchison Port Holdings Trust ("HPH Trust®) and has dual
responsibilities in safeguarding the interests of unitholders as a whole and managing the business of HPH
Trust,

The registered office address of the Company is at 1 Harbourfront Avenue, #1407, Keppel Bay Tower,
Singapore 098632,

2 Basis of preparation and material accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards
(*FRS"). The financial staterments have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as disclosed
in the accounting palicies set out in below,

The preparation of these financial statements in conforminy with FRS requires management 1o Exercise is
judgement in the process of applying the accounting policies of the Company. It also requires the use of
cErtain critical accounting estimates and assumptions. However, there are no areas invalving a higher degree
of judgements or complexity, or areas where estimates and assumptions are significant to the financial
stalements.

ion of -

The Company has adopted all of the new and revised standards and amendments issued by the Accounting
Standards Council that are mandatory for annual period beginning 1 January 2024, The effect of the adoption
of these new and revised standards, amendments and Interpretations was not material 1o the Company's
results or financial position.

Standards and amendments which are not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of the financial statemants, the following standards and amendments were in
Isswe but not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Company:

Armendments o FRS 2117 Lack of Exchangaability

Amendments 1o FRS 109 and FRS 1070 Amendments 1o the Classification and Measurement of Financial
Instruments

Annisal improvements 1o FRSSS Anmual Improvernants 1o FRSE - Valume 11

FRS 118%™ Presentation and Disclosure in Rnancial Statements

FRS 119 Subsidiaries without Pubilic Accountability; Disclosures

Amendments to FRS 110 and FRS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its

Associate ar Joint Yenture

m Effective for annual periods beginning 1 January 2025
(2)  Effective for annual periods beginming 1 January 2026
()] Effective for annual periods beginning 1 January 2027
() Mew effective date to be determined

The Company Is assessing the full impact of these standards and amendments. Certain of them may give rise
to change In presentation, disclosure and measurements of certain items in the financlal statements. They are
not expecied to have material impact to the Company.

10
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ANMUAL REPORT 2004

NOTES TO THE FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

 J Basis of preparation and material accounting policies (Continued)
{ay Fixed assets
Fixed assets ane stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,

Depraciation of fived assets is provided at rates calculated vo write off their costs to thelr residual values over
their estimated wseful Ives on a straight line basks as follows:

Furniture and fixtures Over the lease term of alfice premise
Compuler eguipment 5 years

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of a fixed asset is the dilference between the net sales proceeds
and the carnying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the income statemeant.,

The assets’ residual values and uselul lives are reviewed, and adjusied il appropriate. at the end of each
reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount | the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than s estimated recoverable ameant,

(b}  Asset impairment

Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss ("ECLY) model 1o assess impalrment of financlal assets classified
at amortised cost. The impairment methodology to be applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Company apples the simphfied approach permitted by FRS 1009, which requires

lifetime expected losses far amounts due from customers to be recognised from Initial recognition of the trade
receivables.

Impalrment of other assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation and amartisation are reviewed for impairment to determine whether
there is any indication that the carrying values of these assets may not be recoverable and have suffered an
impairment loss. Il any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order (o
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. Such Impairment loss s recognised in profit or loss except where the
asset Is carried at valuation and the impairment loss does not exceed the revaluation surplus for that asset, in
which case it is treated as a revaluation decrease and recognised in other comprehensive income.

(e}  Trade and other recelvables
Trade and ather receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
€os Using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. Appropriate sllowances for estimated
irrecoverable amounts are recognised in the income statement.
{dy Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and demand deposits with maturity bess than three months,
(e} Trade and other payables

Trade and otheér payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amartised cost
using the affective interest method,
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HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS MANAGEMENT PTE LIMITED

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Basis of preparation and material accounting policies (Continued)
[1i] Provisions
Provisions are recognised when it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required wo settle
a present obligation as a result of past events and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.
i{g)  Foreign exchange
{i Functipnal and presentation currency
The finantial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar whereas the functional currency of the
Company is in United States dollar. Any exchange differences arising from translation are recognised in
other comprahensive income and accumulated under the heading of exchange reserve,
(il  Transactions and balances
Transactions n foreign currencies are converted at the rates of exchange ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities are ranstated at the rates of exchange ruling at the end of
reporting period, Exchange differences are recognised in the profit or foss.
th)  Current tax
The curremt tax charge |s caloulated on the basks of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of reporting period In the country where the Company operates and generates taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to inerpretation and establishes provisions wihere appropriate on the basis of amounts
expecied (o be paid 1o the tax authorities.
[l Revenue recognition
Revenues are recognised when or as the control of the pood of service is translerred 1o the customer,
Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that apply to the contracy, control of the good or senice
may be transferred over me or at a point in time.

Contral of the good or service i transferred over time if the Company’s performande provides all of the
benefits received and consumied simultanaously by the customer,

If control of the asset ransfers gver time, revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognized at a point in time when the customer obtains control of the asset

The progress towards complete satlsfaction of the perfarmance obligation is measured based on direct
measurements of the value transferred by the Company to the customer,

Tramsaction price of a contract shall be allocated to individual perfermance obligation (or distingl good or
servicel. The objective when allocating the transaction price is for an entity 1o sllocate the transaction price
to each performance obligation in an amount that depicis the amount of consideration o which the entity
expects to be entithed in exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to the customer.

Management and service fee incame is recognised over time along with the progress when service is rendered,

Interest income is recognised over time on a time proportion bass using the effective Interest method,

12
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AMMUIAL REPORT 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Basis of preparation and material accounting policies (Continued)

i1} Leases
An arrangement, comprising 4 transaction or a series of transactions, is or containg a lease if the Compary
determines that the arrangement comveys a right 1o control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Such determination |s made on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement, regardless of whether the arrangements take the legal form of a lease.
Azzits leased 1o the Company
Leases are initially recognised as a right-of-use asset and corresponding llabllity at the date of which the
leased asset is available for use by the Company. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance cost. The fimance cost is charged to the income statement over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period, The right-of-use
assel |s depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Assets leased to the Company and the corresponding lahilities are initially measured on a present value basis,
Lease labilithes include the net present value of the following lease payments;

- fixed payments {induding in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;
- variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate; and

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, f the lease term reflecis the Company, as a lessee,
EXercising an opton to terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be determined,
or the incremental horrowing rate of the respective entities, Right-ofuse assers are measured ar cost
comprising the following:
- the amaount of the initial measurement of lease liability;
any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any kease incentive recelved,

- any initial direct costs; and
= réstoration costs.
Payments assaclated with shart-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line
basis as an expense in the income statement. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months ar
less. Low-value assets comprise equipment and small ivems of office furniture.

(ki Dividend

Dividend distribution is recorded as a liability on the date of declaration,

13
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HUTCHISOHN PORT HOLDINGS MANAGEMENT PTE LIMITED

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Revenue and sther income

20024 2023
HK$000 HES000
Revenue
Managemeant and service lee income 33123 19876
Qeher income
Interest income a4 559
33,852 40,435
4 Profit before tax
Profit before tax is stated after charging the following:
2024 2023
HES 000 HES 00
Depreciation of right-of-use assers (Note 8) 181 181
Seaff costs 2m7 1,70
Directors’ fees 5,164 5168
5 Finance costs
2024 2023
HKS$ 000 HKS 000
Lease liabifities 3 L]
6 Tax
2024 2023
HKS000 HKS000
Current tax;
Current tax on profits for the year 4198 5345
Onerprovision im prior year {236} {46)
3,962 5,209

14
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ANMNUAL REPORT 2024

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Tax (Continued)

The tax charge on the Company's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the Singapore standard rate of income tax as follows:

2024 2023
HES'D00 HES 000
Profit before tax 23,996 32,588
Tax calculated at weighted average tax rave of 17.0% (2023: 17.0%) 4411 5527
Tax exemption (101} {101)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 15 11
Income rot subjed to tax (127} [92)
Cwerprovision in prior year (236) (46)
3,962 5299
Dividend
2024 2023
HES'D00 HHES 00O
Interim dividend paid of HKS2.8 (2023 HKS3.0) per shars 28,000 30,000

Right-of-use assets

The Company entered into a new lease agreement for office premises in 2022. For this lease, the Company is
required to make fised menthly paymenis, The Company recognised HE$535,000 of right-of-use assets and
lease llabilities at inception of the lease,

2024 2023

HES 000 HKS 000

As at 1 January 244 118

Depreciation (181 {181}

Exchange difference [y 7

As at 31 Dacembar 59 244
Thie toral cash outflow for the lease in 2024 was HK$186,000 (2023 HKS185,000),

15
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HUTCHISOHN PORT HOLDINGS MANAGEMENT PTE LIMITED

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10
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Fixed assets
Furnlture Computer
and fixtures  equipment Total
HES 000 HK$000 HKE 000
2024
AL 1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024
Cost 124 34 158
Accumulated depreciation (124) (34) {158}
et book valug = - =
2023
AL 1 fanuary 2023 and 31 December 2023
Cost 124 34 158
Accumulated depreciation {124} [EX1] {158}
et book value - - -
Cash and cash equivalents
2024 2023
HK$000 HES 000
Cash at bank 2,856 2507
Short-term bank deposits 14,892 22,059
17,746 24,566
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:
2024 2023
Percentage  Percentage
Hong Kong dollar 92% 95%
United States dollar 5% 2%
Singapare dollar I 3%
100% 100%
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ANMUAL REPORT 2024

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Trade and other receivables

2024 2023

HES000 HKS'000

Trade receivables from HPH Trust 18,659 17,612
Dther receivables 18 47
1B,677 17,659

Trade and other receivables are mainly denaominated in UWnited States dollar and Hong Kong dallar and the

carrying amounts approximate their fair values.

The trade receivables from HPH Trust are unsecured and imterest frie,

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carmying value of trade and other receivables.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are mainly denominated In United States dollar and the carrying amounts

apprastimate their fair values.

Lease llabilities

The following detall the remaining contractual muturities at the end of the reporting peried of the Company's
lease labitities, which are based on contractual discounted principal cash flows and the earliest date on which

the Company can be reguired 1o pay:

2024 2023
HKS'000 HKS'000
Currant 60 185
Non-current = =7
&0 247
Share capital
Issued and
fully paid:
number af
shares HE$
At 31 December 2023 and 2024 10,000,000 100,001
17
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HUTCHISOHN PORT HOLDINGS MANAGEMENT PTE. LIMITED

MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

15  Notes to statement of cash flows

{a} Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash generated from operations:

2024 2023

il RNT
Operating profit 25998 32554
Interest income {769) (359)
Depreciation (Note 8) 181 181
Foreign exchange loss 2 229
Operating profit before working capltal changes 25433 32,445
(Increase)fdecrease in trade and other recelvables {1,018) 15,196
Increase in trade and other payables 1,092 676
Met cash lrom operatkons 25,507 48317

(b}  Reconcillation of liabilities arising from financing activities is as follows:
Lease liabllities
024 2023

HKS000 HES000
As at 1 January 247 420
Principal elements af lease payments {183) {179)
Interest etemems of lease liabilives paid (3 (&)
Interest on lease liabilities (Nate 5) 3 5]
Exchange translation differences [4h G
As at 31 December L] 247

16  Related parties transactions

Significant transactions between the Company and related parties during the year that are carried out in the
mormal course of business are disclosed below:

(i} Income from and expense to related parties

2024 2023
HKS000  HKS'000
Irec e
Management fees received from HPH Trust (Note a)
- Base fee 26,646 26,431
- Development fee 6477 13,445
33123 39,876
Expense;
Lease payments (Note b) 186 185

8
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ANMIIAL REPORT 2004

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Related parties transactions (Continued)

(i}

i}

Income from and expense to related parties (Continued)
Motes:

{a) Management fees were charged in accordance with the trust deed dated 25 February 2011,
the first supplemental deed dated 28 April 2014 and the second supplemental deed dated
8 June 2020 for HPH Trust {collectively, *Trust Deed™). The base fee was charged at a fized fee
af USS$2.500.000 (equivalent 1o approximately HK$19.500,000) per annum which is subject to
Imcrease each year from 2012 by such percentage representing the percentage increase in the
Homg Kong Composite Consumer Price Index. The base fee for the year ended 31 December
2024 is payable in cash. As the December 2024 figure for the Hong Kong Composite Consumer
Price Index is yet to be published as at the date of preparation of these financial statements, the
adjustment to the base fee, if required, will be accounted for in the subsequent financial year,

Development fee relates to the development project by Yantian East Port International Container
Terminals Limited, a Joint venture of HPH Trust. was charged in accordance with the Trust
Deed which states that the development lee is payable in arrears lor every six months after
the commencement of the development project in respect of project costs incurred over the
previous six-month period, Pursuant to the Trust Deed,

(1)  where the total project costs incurred in the development project is bess than US$500
millian, the Company is entitled 1o receive a fee of 2.5% of the total project costs incurred
{pro-rated to HPH Trust's 39.73% effective Interest in the subject development project);
and

{Z)  where the toral project costs incurred in the development project is USS500 millien or
more, the Company is entitled (o receive a fee of US$12.5 million plus 1.5% af the total
project costs Imcurred which exceeds USSS00 million (pro-rated to HPH Trusts 39.73%
effective interest in the subject development project).

Total project costs inturred since commencement of the project up ta 31 December 2024 wing
over US$500 million, Development fees were caloulated based on the 2.5% for the project costs
imcurred reached and within the U53$500 million threshold and 1.5% for the project costs incurred
over US$500 million threshold for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 and pro-rated to
HPH Trust's 39.73% effective interest in the subject development project

{by  The Company leases office premises from a related company and was charged at terms pursuant
12 the relevant agreement,

Key management compensations

Key management includes directors, the Chiel Executive Officer and the Chiel Fimangial Officer. The
coampensation paid or payable to key management for employee senvdces is shown below:

2024 2023

HKS'000 HES 000

Salaries and direcrars foes 5,969 6,654
%

281/317



EDINETOOOO
OO000o0oO0oOdoooooooo0o000odboonoonoo0onoonoan(e2s351)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

HUTCHISOHN PORT HOLDINGS MANAGEMENT PTE. LIMITED

MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

17 Financial risk and capital management

{a} Cash management and funding
The major financial instruments of the Company include cash and cash equivalents, trade and ather
receivables, rade and other payables and lease Habilites. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in the respective notes to the financial statements. The risk management programme of the Company is
designed to minimise the financial risks of the Company. These risks Include credit risk, foreign currency risk
and, interest rate risk.

The management of the Company regularty and closely monitors its overall net cash paosition and reviews its
funding casts and maturity profila.

(b}  Capital management

The Company's strategy is to ensure optimal returns to sharehalders, while maintaining sufficlent flexibility to
implement grawth strategles.

{e)  Credit exposure
The Company's holdings of cash and cash equivalents and trade and other recetvables expose the Company
to counterparty credit risk. The Company contrals its credit risk to nen-performance by Its counterparties
through regular review and maonitoring their credit ratings,
The receivabrles from other counterparties also expose the company to credit risk, The company cantrols its
credit risk by assessing the credit guality of the receivables, taking into account its financial position, past
experience and ather factors,

(d)  Foreign currency exposure

Currency risk arises on financial instruments denominated in a currency that is not the functional currency and
being of a monetary nature.

The Compary does not have significant foreign currency expasure as Hong Kong dollar is pegged to United
States dollar.

{e] Interest rate exposure
The Company’s malin interest risk exposure relate to cash and cash equivalents. The Company manages its
interest rate exposure with a focws on reducing the Company’s overall cost of debt and exposure to changes in
mterest rates.
The impact of a hypothetical 5 basis points increase in market interest rate at the end of reporting pericd
wuld increase the Company's prefit and increase members equity by HK$9,000 {(2023: HKS12,000],

18  Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements set out on pages 6 to 20 were approved by the Board of Directors of the Company for
Issue on 7 February 2025.

20
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS
TRUST

Report on the Audit of the Financiad Statements
Our opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Hutchison Port Holdings Trust (“the Trust”)
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) and the statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity of the
Trust are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Business Trusts Act 2004 (“the
Act”) and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS") so as to give atrue and fair view of the
consolidated financia position of the Group and the financia position of the Trust as at 31 December 2024 and of
the consolidated financial performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group
and the changes in equity of the Trust for the financial year ended on that date.

What we have audited
The financia statements of the Trust and the Group comprise:

the consolidated income statement of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the Group for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2024;

the statement of financial position of the Trust as at 31 December 2024;

the consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group for the year then ended,;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in equity of the Trust for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, comprising material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

Basisfor Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAS”). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial

Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS

TRUST (CONTINUED)

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority Code of
Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (* ACRA Code”) together with the
ethical requirementsthat are relevant to our audit of the financia statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Cade.

Our Audit Approach

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the
accompanying financial statements. In particular, we considered where management made subjective judgements;
for example, in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and considering
future events that are inherently uncertain. Asin all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management
override of internal controls, including among other matters consideration of whether there was evidence of bias
that represented arisk of material misstatement due to fraud.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2024. These matters were addressed in the

context of our audit of the financial statements as awhole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS
TRUST (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Goodwill and other operating assets We have performed the following procedures to evaluate the Group’s
impairment assessments:
Refer to notes 3(a), 3(b), 3(c) and 14(b) to the financial

statements Understanding the management’ s assessment process of

impairment of goodwill and other operating assets and assessing
The Group has a significant amount of goodwill and the inherent risk of material misstatement by considering the
other operating assets arising primarily from the degree of estimation uncertainty and the judgements involved in
acquisition of deep-water container ports in Shenzhen determining the assumptions to be applied;

and Hong Kong in 2011.

Assessed the appropriateness of the valuation methodology used;
Goodwill is subject to impairment tests annually and

whenever there is an indication of impairment, while Assessed the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our
other operating assets are subject to impairment tests knowledge of the business and industry and with the involvement
when thereis an indication of impairment. of our valuation experts;

For the purpose of the Group’s impairment assessments, Considered the potential impact of reasonably possible changes on
impairment was assessed using value-in use-models for the key assumptions; and

deep water container ports in Shenzhen and Hong Kong,
which are the cash generating units (*CGUSs") of the
Group.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS

TRUST (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Goodwill and other operating assets (Continued)

In carrying out the impairment assessments, significant
judgements are required to determine the assumptions. The
most significant assumptions relate to discount rates and
growth rates in revenue and cost of services rendered.

Based on the results of these impairment assessments
conducted by the Group, the Group determined that no
additional impairment is required on the goodwill and other
operating assets, other than the previously provided
goodwill impairment amount of HK$30.4 hillion.

The significant assumptions are disclosed in note 14(b) to
the financial statements.

We have performed the following procedures to evaluate the Group’
simpairment assessments: (Continued)

Tested source data to supporting evidence on a sample basis,
such as approved budgets and available market data and
considered the reasonableness of these budgets.

We found the assumptions adopted in relation to these impairment
assessments to be supportable and reasonable based on available
evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS

TRUST (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Revenue recognition
Refer to notes 3(e) and 4 to the financial statements.

Revenue from rendering of container handling servicesis
recognised and accrued with reference to the throughput
handled and the terms of agreements for such service.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, revenue from
container handling services amounting to HK$10,918
million is recognised based on the containers handled as
well asthe tariff applied. The tariff applied isthe rate
agreed with customers or estimated by management based
on the latest terms of the agreement or latest negotiation
with customers and other industry considerations as
appropriate.

Dueto the large variety and complexity of contractual
terms, aswell as ongoing negotiations with customers,
significant judgements are required to estimate the tariff
rate applied. If the actual rate differs from the estimated
rate applied, thiswill have an impact on the accuracy of
revenue recognised in the current year and accrued as at
year end.

We have performed the following procedures in relation to the
accuracy of net revenue recognised and accrued:

Understood, evaluated and tested the key controls over the tariff
applied in container handling services.

We selected a sample of transactions and:

Agreed the applied tariff to the respective termsin the
contracts or latest correspondence with customers where
the tariff has been estimated by management.

Agreed throughput handled, used in the calculation of
tariffs, to the operating system recording throughput.

Tested revenue calculations and agreed the revenue
recognised to the underlying accounting records.

Checked to bank advices or credit notes on a sample basis for
the net settlement and reviewed aged items for any disputed
amounts.

We found the judgement made by management in estimating tariff in
the revenue recognised and accrued to be supportable and reasonable
based on available evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS
TRUST (CONTINUED)

Other Information

Hutchison Port Holdings Management Pte. Limited (the “ Trustee-Manager”) is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all the sections of the annual report (but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon) which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report
except for the information on statistics of unitholdings, which is expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other information identified
above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’
sreport, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the information on statistics of unitholdings, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to the Trustee-Manager and take appropriate actionsin
accordance with ISAs.

Responsibilities of Trustee-Manager for the Financiad Statements

The Trustee-Manager is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give atrue and fair view in
accordance with the provisions of the Act and HKFRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal
accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from
unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to
permit the preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustee-Manager is responsible for ng the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Trustee-Manager either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Trustee-Manager’'s responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS
TRUST (CONTINUED)

Auditor' s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’ s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assuranceis ahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAswill always detect amaterial misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether dueto fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion. Therisk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Trustee-Manager.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Trustee-Manager’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosuresin the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the group
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS

TRUST (CONTINUED)

We communicate with the Trustee-Manager regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Trustee-Manager with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Trustee-Manager, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these mattersin our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Trustee-Manager have been
properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Debra Ann Ker.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants
Singapore, 7 February 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS MANAGEMENT
PTE. LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of Hutchison Port Holdings Management Pte. Limited (the
“Company”) are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1967 (the “Act”) and
Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore (“FRSs”) so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Company as at 31 December 2024 and of the financial performance, cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

What we have audited
The financial statements of the Company comprise:

the statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2024;

the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (“SSAs”). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority Code
of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (“ACRA Code”) together with

the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS MANAGEMENT

PTE. LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors’ Statement but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Trustee-Manager for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls
sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or
disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the
preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS MANAGEMENT
PTE. LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company have been properly
kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants
Singapore, 7 February 2025

317/317



	表紙
	本文
	第一部ファンド情報
	第１ファンドの状況
	１ファンドの性格
	（１）ファンドの目的及び基本的性格
	（２）ファンドの沿革
	（３）ファンドの仕組み
	（４）ファンドに係る法制度の概要
	（５）開示制度の概要
	（６）監督官庁の概要

	２投資方針
	（１）投資方針
	（２）投資対象
	（３）運用体制
	（４）分配方針
	（５）投資制限

	３投資リスク
	４手数料等及び税金
	（１）申込手数料
	（２）買戻し手数料
	（３）管理報酬等
	（４）その他の手数料等
	（５）課税上の取扱い

	５運用状況
	(１)投資状況
	(２)投資資産
	①投資有価証券の主要銘柄
	②投資不動産物件
	③その他投資資産の主要なもの

	(３)運用実績
	①純資産の推移
	②分配の推移
	③収益率の推移

	(４)販売及び買戻しの実績


	第２管理及び運営
	１申込（販売）手続等
	２買戻し手続等
	３資産管理等の概要
	（１）資産の評価
	（２）保管
	（３）信託期間
	（４）計算期間
	（５）その他

	４受益者の権利等
	（１）受益者の権利等
	（２）為替管理上の取扱い
	（３）本邦における代理人
	（４）裁判管轄等


	第３ファンドの経理状況
	１財務諸表
	（１）貸借対照表
	（２）損益計算書
	（３）投資有価証券明細表等
	①投資株式明細表
	②株式以外の投資有価証券明細表
	③投資不動産明細表
	④その他投資資産明細表
	⑤借入金明細表


	２ファンドの現況
	純資産額計算書


	第４外国投資信託受益証券事務の概要

	第二部特別情報
	第１管理会社の概況
	１管理会社の概況
	２事業の内容及び営業の概況
	３管理会社の経理状況
	（１）貸借対照表
	（２）損益計算書

	４利害関係人との取引制限
	５その他

	第２その他の関係法人の概況
	１名称、資本金の額及び事業の内容
	２関係業務の概要
	３資本関係

	第３投資信託制度の概要
	第４参考情報
	第５その他

	監査報告書

